

SB0133S02 compared with SB0133

~~{Omitted text}~~ shows text that was in SB0133 but was omitted in SB0133S02

inserted text shows text that was not in SB0133 but was inserted into SB0133S02

DISCLAIMER: This document is provided to assist you in your comparison of the two bills. Sometimes this automated comparison will NOT be completely accurate. Therefore, you need to read the actual bills. This automatically generated document could contain inaccuracies caused by: limitations of the compare program; bad input data; or other causes.

1

Metal Purchase and Theft Amendments

2025 GENERAL SESSION

STATE OF UTAH

Chief Sponsor: Todd Weiler

House Sponsor:

2

3 LONG TITLE

4 General Description:

5 This bill concerns the purchase and theft of metal including catalytic converters.

6 Highlighted Provisions:

7 This bill:

8 ▶ defines terms;

9 ▶ ~~{removes-}~~ clarifies language concerning catalytic converter ~~{purchasers from the procedures and requirements of}~~ purchases in the Pawnshop, Secondhand Merchandise, and Catalytic Converter Transaction Information Act;

12 ▶ creates the criminal offense of metal or catalytic converter theft;

13 ▶ removes penalty provisions concerning metal or catalytic converter theft from certain generally applicable criminal theft statutes due to the creation of the metal or catalytic converter theft offense;

15 ▶ updates industry definition for metal regulation requirements and offenses;

16 ▶ adds the new metal or catalytic converter theft offense to the offenses concerning pattern of unlawful activity; and

18 ▶ makes technical and conforming changes.

SB0133

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

19 **Money Appropriated in this Bill:**

20 None

21 **Other Special Clauses:**

22 This bill provides a special effective date.

24 **AMENDS:**

25 ~~{13-2-1 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapter 132 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapter 132}~~

26 ~~{13-32a-101 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

27 ~~{13-32a-102 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapter 507 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapter 507}~~

28 ~~{13-32a-104 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448}~~

25 **13-32a-104.7 , as enacted by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as enacted by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201**

29 ~~{13-32a-105 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

30 ~~{13-32a-106 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapters 201, 274 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapters 201, 274}~~

31 ~~{13-32a-106.5 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

32 ~~{13-32a-108 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

33 ~~{13-32a-109 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448}~~

34 ~~{13-32a-109.5 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

35 ~~{13-32a-110 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

36 ~~{13-32a-110.5 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 37 ~~{13-32a-111, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by Laws~~
~~of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 38 ~~{13-32a-112.1, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by~~
~~Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 39 ~~{13-32a-112.5, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by~~
~~Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 40 ~~{13-32a-113, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by Laws~~
~~of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 41 ~~{13-32a-114, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by Laws~~
~~of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 42 ~~{13-32a-115, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by Laws~~
~~of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 43 ~~{13-32a-116, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201, as last amended by Laws~~
~~of Utah 2022, Chapter 201}~~
- 44 ~~{13-32a-116.5, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448, as last amended by~~
~~Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 448}~~
- 45 ~~{63G-2-305, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapters 18, 101, 135, 267, 344, and~~
~~522, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapters 18, 101, 135, 267, 344, and 522}~~
- 26 **76-6-404**, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by Coordination
Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and
last amended by Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407
- 28 **76-6-405**, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by Coordination
Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and
last amended by Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407
- 30 **76-6-406**, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by Coordination
Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and
last amended by Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407
- 53 ~~{76-6-408, as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by~~
~~Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407, as last amended by Laws of Utah~~
~~2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter~~
~~407}~~

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

32 **76-6-602** , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and last amended by Coordination
Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 and
last amended by Coordination Clause, Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 407

34 **76-6-1402** , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2015, Chapter 108 , as last amended by Laws of Utah
2015, Chapter 108

58 ~~{76-6-1406 , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 , as last amended by Laws
of Utah 2023, Chapter 111}~~

35 **76-10-1602** , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2024, Chapter 96 , as last amended by Laws of Utah
2024, Chapter 96

36 **78B-3-108** , as last amended by Laws of Utah 2023, Chapter 111 , as last amended by Laws of Utah
2023, Chapter 111

37 ENACTS:

38 **76-6-415** , Utah Code Annotated 1953 , Utah Code Annotated 1953

REPEALS:

64 ~~{13-32a-104.7 , as enacted by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as enacted by Laws of Utah
2022, Chapter 201}~~

65 ~~{13-32a-118 , as enacted by Laws of Utah 2022, Chapter 201 , as enacted by Laws of Utah
2022, Chapter 201}~~

40 *Be it enacted by the Legislature of the state of Utah:*

68 ~~{Section 1. Section 13-2-1 is amended to read: }~~

69 **13-2-1. Consumer protection division established -- Functions.**

70 (1) There is established within the Department of Commerce the Division of Consumer Protection.

72 (2) The division shall administer and enforce the following:

73 (a) Chapter 10a, Music Licensing Practices Act;

74 (b) Chapter 11, Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act;

75 (c) Chapter 15, Business Opportunity Disclosure Act;

76 (d) Chapter 20, New Motor Vehicle Warranties Act;

77 (e) Chapter 21, Credit Services Organizations Act;

78 (f) Chapter 22, Charitable Solicitations Act;

79 (g) Chapter 23, Health Spa Services Protection Act;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 80 (h) Chapter 25a, Telephone and Facsimile Solicitation Act;
- 81 (i) Chapter 26, Telephone Fraud Prevention Act;
- 82 (j) Chapter 28, Prize Notices Regulation Act;
- 83 (k) Chapter 32a, Pawnshop[;] and Secondhand Merchandise[; ~~and Catalytic Converter~~] Transaction
Information Act;
- 85 (l) Chapter 34, Utah Postsecondary School and State Authorization Act;
- 86 (m) Chapter 41, Price Controls During Emergencies Act;
- 87 (n) Chapter 42, Uniform Debt-Management Services Act;
- 88 (o) Chapter 49, Immigration Consultants Registration Act;
- 89 (p) Chapter 51, Transportation Network Company Registration Act;
- 90 (q) Chapter 52, Residential Solar Energy Disclosure Act;
- 91 (r) Chapter 53, Residential, Vocational and Life Skills Program Act;
- 92 (s) Chapter 54, Ticket Website Sales Act;
- 93 (t) Chapter 56, Ticket Transferability Act;
- 94 (u) Chapter 57, Maintenance Funding Practices Act;
- 95 (v) Chapter 61, Utah Consumer Privacy Act;
- 96 (w) Chapter 63, Utah Social Media Regulation Act;
- 97 (x) Chapter 64, Vehicle Value Protection Agreement Act;
- 98 (y) Chapter 65, Utah Commercial Email Act;
- 99 (z) Chapter 67, Online Dating Safety Act;
- 100 (aa) Chapter 68, Lawyer Referral Consultants Registration Act;
- 101 (bb) Chapter 70, Automatic Renewal Contracts Act; and
- 102 (cc) Chapter 71, Utah Minor Protection in Social Media Act.
- 103 (3) In accordance with Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act, the division may
make rules to establish:
 - 105 (a) a public list that identifies a person who:
 - 106 (i) violates a chapter described in Subsection (2);
 - 107 (ii) without proper legal justification, fails to comply with an order, subpoena, judgment, or other legal
process issued by:
 - 109 (A) the division; or
 - 110 (B) a court of competent jurisdiction; or

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (iii) breaches a settlement agreement, stipulation, assurance of voluntary compliance, or similar instrument signed by the person and the division; and
- (b) a process by which a person may be removed from the list the division establishes as described in Subsection (3)(a).

~~{Section 2. Section 13-32a-101 is amended to read: }~~

CHAPTER 32a. PAWNSHOP AND SECONDHAND

MERCHANDISE TRANSACTION INFORMATION ACT

13-32a-101. Title.

This chapter is known as the "Pawnshop[;] and Secondhand Merchandise[; ~~and Catalytic Converter~~] Transaction Information Act."

~~{Section 3. Section 13-32a-102 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-102. Definitions.

As used in this chapter:

- (1) "Account" means the Pawnbroker[;] and Secondhand Merchandise[; ~~and Catalytic Converter~~] Operations Restricted Account created in Section 13-32a-113.
- (2) "Antique item" means an item:
- (a) that is generally older than 25 years;
 - (b) whose value is based on age, rarity, condition, craftsmanship, or collectability;
 - (c) that is furniture or other decorative objects produced in a previous time period, as distinguished from new items of a similar nature; and
 - (d) obtained from auctions, estate sales, other antique shops, and individuals.
- (3) "Antique shop" means a business operating at an established location that deals primarily in the purchase, exchange, or sale of antique items.
- (4) "Automated recycling kiosk" means an interactive machine that:
- (a) is installed inside a commercial site used for the selling of goods and services to consumers;
 - (b) is monitored remotely by a live representative during the hours of operation;
 - (c) only engages in secondhand merchandise transactions involving wireless communication devices; and
 - (d) has the following technological functions:
 - (i) verifies the seller's identity by a live representative using the individual's identification;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 143 (ii) generates a ticket; and
- 144 (iii) electronically transmits the secondhand merchandise transaction information to the central database.
- 146 (5) "Automated recycling kiosk operator" means a person whose sole business activity is the operation of one or more automated recycling kiosks.
- 148 [~~(6) "Catalytic converter" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.]~~
- 149 [~~(7)~~
- (a) ~~"Catalytic converter purchase" means a purchase from an individual of a used catalytic converter that is no longer affixed to a vehicle.]~~
- 151 [~~(b) "Catalytic converter purchase" does not mean a purchase of a catalytic converter:]~~
- 152 [~~(i) from a business regularly engaged in automobile repair, crushing, dismantling, recycling, or salvage;]~~
- 154 [~~(ii) from a new or used vehicle dealer licensed under Title 41, Chapter 3, Motor Vehicle Business Regulation Act;]~~
- 156 [~~(iii) from another catalytic converter purchaser; or]~~
- 157 [~~(iv) that has never been affixed to a vehicle.]~~
- 158 [~~(8) "Catalytic converter purchaser" means a person who purchases a used catalytic converter in a catalytic converter purchase.]~~
- 160 [~~(9)] (6) "Central database" or "database" means the electronic database created and operated under Section 13-32a-105.~~
- 162 [~~(10)] (7) "Children's product" means a used item that is for the exclusive use of children, or for the care of children, including clothing and toys.~~
- 164 [~~(11)] (8) "Children's product resale business" means a business operating at a commercial location and primarily selling children's products.~~
- 166 [~~(12)] (9) "Coin" means a piece of currency, usually metallic and usually in the shape of a disc that is:~~
- 168 (a) stamped metal, and issued by a government as monetary currency; or
- 169 (b)
- (i) worth more than its current value as currency; and
- 170 (ii) worth more than its metal content value.
- 171 [~~(13)] (10) "Coin dealer" means a person whose sole business activity is the selling and purchasing of numismatic items and precious metals.~~

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 173 ~~[(14)]~~ (11) "Collectible paper money" means paper currency that is no longer in circulation and is sold
and purchased for the paper currency's collectible value.
- 175 ~~[(15)]~~ (12)
- (a) "Commercial grade precious metals" or "precious metals" means ingots, monetized bullion, art bars,
medallions, medals, tokens, and currency that are marked by the refiner or fabricator indicating their
fineness and include:
- 178 (i) .99 fine or finer ingots of gold, silver, platinum, palladium, or other precious metals; or
180 (ii) .925 fine sterling silver ingots, art bars, and medallions.
- 181 (b) "Commercial grade precious metals" or "precious metals" does not include jewelry.
- 182 ~~[(16)]~~ (13) "Consignment shop" means a business, operating at an established location:
- 183 (a) that deals primarily in the offering for sale property owned by a third party; and
184 (b) where the owner of the property only receives consideration upon the sale of the property by the
business.
- 186 ~~[(17)]~~ (14) "Division" means the Division of Consumer Protection created in Chapter 1, Department of
Commerce.
- 188 ~~[(18)]~~ (15) "Exonumia" means a privately issued token for trade that is sold and purchased for the
token's collectible value.
- 190 ~~[(19)]~~ (16) "Gift card" means a record that:
- 191 (a) is usable at:
- 192 (i) a single merchant; or
193 (ii) a specified group of merchants;
- 194 (b) is prefunded before the record is used; and
195 (c) can be used for the purchase of goods or services.
- 196 ~~[(20)]~~ (17) "Identification" means any of the following non-expired forms of identification issued by
a state government, the United States government, or a federally recognized Indian tribe, if the
identification includes a unique number, photograph of the bearer, and date of birth:
- 200 (a) a United States Passport or United States Passport Card;
201 (b) a state-issued driver license;
202 (c) a state-issued identification card;
203 (d) a state-issued concealed carry permit;
204 (e) a United States military identification;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 205 (f) a United States resident alien card;
- 206 (g) an identification of a federally recognized Indian tribe; or
- 207 (h) notwithstanding Section 53-3-207, a Utah driving privilege card.
- 208 [(21)] (18) "IMEI number" means an International Mobile Equipment Identity number.
- 209 [(22)] (19) "Indicia of being new" means property that:
- 210 (a) is represented by the individual pawning or selling the property as new;
- 211 (b) is unopened in the original packaging; or
- 212 (c) possesses other distinguishing characteristics that indicate the property is new.
- 213 [(23)] (20) "Local law enforcement agency" means the law enforcement agency that has direct
responsibility for ensuring compliance with central database reporting requirements for the
jurisdiction where the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is located.
- 217 [(24)] (21) "Numismatic item" means a coin, collectible paper money, or exnumia.
- 218 [(25)] (22) "Original victim" means a victim who is not a party to the pawn or sale transaction~~[-or
catalytic converter purchase]~~ and includes:
- 220 (a) an authorized representative designated in writing by the original victim; and
- 221 (b) an insurer who has indemnified the original victim for the loss of the described property.
- 223 [(26)] (23) "Pawn or secondhand business" means a business operated by a pawnbroker or secondhand
merchandise dealer, or the owner or operator of the business.
- 225 [(27)] (24) "Pawn transaction" means:
- 226 (a) an extension of credit in which an individual delivers property to a pawnbroker for an advance of
money and retains the right to redeem the property for the redemption price within a fixed period of
time;
- 229 (b) a loan of money on one or more deposits of personal property;
- 230 (c) the purchase, exchange, or possession of personal property on condition of selling the same property
back again to the pledgor or depositor; or
- 232 (d) a loan or advance of money on personal property by the pawnbroker taking chattel mortgage
security on the personal property, taking or receiving the personal property into the pawnbroker's
possession, and selling the unredeemed pledges.
- 235 [(28)] (25) "Pawnbroker" means a person whose business:
- 236 (a) engages in a pawn transaction; or
- 237

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(b) holds itself out as being in the business of a pawnbroker or pawnshop, regardless of whether the person or business enters into pawn transactions or secondhand merchandise transactions.

240 [(29)] (26) "Pawnshop" means the physical location or premises where a pawnbroker conducts business.

242 [(30)] (27) "Pledgor" means an individual who conducts a pawn transaction with a pawnshop.

244 [(31)] (28) "Property" means an article of tangible personal property, numismatic item, precious metal, gift card, transaction card, or other physical or digital card or certificate evidencing store credit, and includes a wireless communication device.

247 [(32)] (29) "Retail media item" means recorded music, a movie, or a video game that is produced and distributed in hard copy format for retail sale.

249 [(33)] (30) "Scrap jewelry" means an item purchased solely:

250 (a) for its gold, silver, or platinum content; and

251 (b) for the purpose of reuse of the metal content.

252 [(34)] (31)

(a) "Secondhand merchandise dealer" means a person whose business:

253 (i) engages in a secondhand merchandise transaction; and

254 (ii) does not engage in a pawn transaction.

255 (b) "Secondhand merchandise dealer" includes a coin dealer and an automated recycling kiosk operator.

257 (c) "Secondhand merchandise dealer" does not include:

258 (i) an antique shop when dealing in antique items;

259 (ii) a person who operates an auction house, flea market, or vehicle, vessel, and outboard motor dealers as defined in Section 41-1a-102;

261 (iii) the sale of secondhand goods at events commonly known as "garage sales," "yard sales," "estate sales," "storage unit sales," or "storage unit auctions";

263 (iv) the sale or receipt of secondhand books, magazines, post cards, or nonelectronic:

264 (A) card games;

265 (B) table-top games; or

266 (C) magic tricks;

267 (v) the sale or receipt of used merchandise donated to recognized nonprofit, religious, or charitable organizations or any school-sponsored association, and for which no compensation is paid;

270 (vi) the sale or receipt of secondhand clothing, shoes, furniture, or appliances;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 271 (vii) a person offering the person's own personal property for sale, purchase, consignment, or trade via
the Internet;
- 273 (viii) a person offering the personal property of others for sale, purchase, consignment, or trade via
the Internet, when that person does not have, and is not required to have, a local business or
occupational license or other authorization for this activity;
- 277 (ix) an owner or operator of a retail business that:
- 278 (A) receives used merchandise as a trade-in for similar new merchandise ; or
- 279 (B) receives used retail media items as a trade-in for similar new or used retail media items;
- 281 (x) an owner or operator of a business that contracts with other persons to offer those persons'
secondhand goods for sale, purchase, consignment, or trade via the Internet;
- 284 (xi) any dealer as defined in Section 76-6-1402, that concerns scrap metal and secondary metals;
- 286 (xii) the purchase of items in bulk that are:
- 287 (A) sold at wholesale in bulk packaging;
- 288 (B) sold by a person licensed to conduct business in Utah; and
- 289 (C) regularly sold in bulk quantities as a recognized form of sale;
- 290 (xiii) the owner or operator of a children's product resale business; or
- 291 (xiv) a consignment shop when dealing in consigned property[; ~~or~~] .
- 292 [~~(xv) a catalytic converter purchaser.~~]
- 293 [(35)] (32) "Secondhand merchandise transaction" means the purchase or exchange of used or
secondhand property.
- 295 [(36)] (33) "Ticket" means a document upon which information is entered when a pawn transaction or
secondhand merchandise transaction is made.
- 297 [(37)] (34) "Transaction card" means a card, code, or other means of access to a value with the
retail business issued to a person that allows the person to obtain, purchase, or receive any of the
following:
- 300 (a) goods;
- 301 (b) services;
- 302 (c) money; or
- 303 (d) anything else of value.
- 304 [(38)] (35) "Wireless communication device" means a cellular telephone or a portable electronic device
designed to receive and transmit a text message, email, video, or voice communication.

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

~~{Section 4. Section 13-32a-104 is amended to read: }~~

**13-32a-104. Tickets required to be maintained -- Contents -- Identification of items --
Exceptions -- Prohibition against pawning or selling certain property.**

(1) A pawn or secondhand business shall keep a ticket for property a person pawns or sells to the pawn or secondhand business. A pawn or secondhand business shall document on the ticket the following information regarding the property:

(a) the date and time of the transaction;

(b) whether the transaction is a pawn or purchase;

(c) the ticket number;

(d) the date by which the property must be redeemed, if the property is pawned;

(e) the following information regarding the individual who pawns or sells the property:

(i) the individual's full name and date of birth as they appear on the individual's identification and the individual's residence address and telephone number;

(ii) the unique number and type of identification presented to the pawn or secondhand business;

(iii) the individual's signature; and

(iv)

(A) subject to any rule made under Subsection [(8)] (7), an electronic or tangible legible fingerprint of the individual's right index finger, or if the right index finger cannot be fingerprinted, a legible fingerprint of the individual with a notation identifying the fingerprint and the reason why the right index fingerprint was unavailable; and

(B) notwithstanding the other provisions of this Subsection (1), an electronic legible fingerprint is not required to be documented on the ticket;

(f) the amount loaned on, paid for, or value for trade-in of each article of property;

(g) the full name of the individual conducting the pawn transaction or secondhand merchandise transaction on behalf of the pawn or secondhand business or the initials or a unique identifying number of the individual, if the pawn or secondhand business maintains a record of the initials or unique identifying number of the individual; and

(h) an accurate description of each article of property, with available identifying marks, including:

(i)

(A) names, brand names, numbers, serial numbers, model numbers, IMEI numbers, color, manufacturers' names, and size;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 339 (B) metallic composition, and any jewels, stones, or glass;
340 (C) any other marks of identification or indicia of ownership on the property;
341 (D) the weight of the property, if the payment is based on weight;
342 (E) any other unique identifying feature; and
343 (F) gold content, if indicated; or
344 (ii) if multiple articles of property of a similar nature are delivered together in one transaction and the articles of property do not bear serial or model numbers and do not include precious metals or gemstones, such as musical or video recordings, books, or hand tools, the description of the articles is adequate if it includes the quantity of the articles and a description of the type of articles delivered.
- 349 (2)
- (a) A pawn or secondhand business may not accept property if, upon inspection, it is apparent that:
- 351 (i) a serial number or another form of indicia of ownership has been removed, altered, defaced, or obliterated;
- 353 (ii) the property is not a numismatic item and has indicia of being new, but is not accompanied by a written receipt or other satisfactory proof of ownership other than the seller's own statement; or
- 356 (iii) except as provided in Subsection 13-32a-103.1(3), the property is a gift card, transaction card, or other physical or digital card or certificate evidencing store credit.
- 359 (b) A pawn or secondhand business is not subject to Subsection (2)(a)(ii) if the pawn or secondhand business is the original seller of the property and is accepting a return of the property as provided by the pawn or secondhand business' established return policy.
- 363 (c) Property is presumed to have had indicia of being new at the time of a transaction if the property is subsequently advertised by the pawn or secondhand business as being new.
- 366 (3)
- (a) An individual may not pawn or sell any property to a business regulated under this chapter if the property is subject to being turned over to a law enforcement agency in accordance with Title 77, Chapter 11d, Lost or Mislaid Property.
- 369 (b) If an individual attempts to sell or pawn property to a business regulated under this chapter and the employee or owner of the business knows or has reason to know that the property is subject to Title 77, Chapter 11d, Lost or Mislaid Property, the employee or owner shall advise the individual of the

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

requirements of Title 77, Chapter 11d, Lost or Mislaid Property, and may not receive the property in pawn or sale.

(4) A coin dealer is subject to Section 13-32a-104.5 and not subject to this section.

(5) An automated recycling kiosk operator is subject to Section 13-32a-104.6 and is not subject to this section.

~~[(6) A catalytic converter purchaser is subject to Section 13-32a-104.7 and is not subject to this section.]~~

~~[(7)]~~ (6) A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor and is also subject to civil penalties under Section 13-32a-110.

~~[(8)]~~ (7) The division shall establish standards and criteria for fingerprint legibility by rule made in accordance with Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act.

~~[(9)]~~ (8)

(a) As used in this Subsection ~~[(9)]~~ (8), "jewelry" means:

(i) any jewelry purchased by the pawn or secondhand business, including scrap jewelry and watches; or

(ii) any jewelry pawned to a pawnbroker and the contract period between the pawnbroker and the pledgor has expired, including scrap jewelry and watches.

(b) On and after January 1, 2020, a pawn or secondhand business shall obtain:

(i) a color digital photograph clearly and accurately depicting:

(A) each item of jewelry; and

(B) if an item of jewelry has one or more engravings, an additional color digital photograph specifically depicting any engraving; and

(ii) a color digital photograph of an item that bears an identifying mark, including:

(A) a serial number, engraving, owner label, or similar identifying mark; and

(B) an additional photograph that clearly depicts the identifying mark described in Subsection ~~[(9)(b)(ii)]~~ ~~(A)]~~ (8)(b)(ii)(A).

Section 1. Section 13-32a-104.7 is amended to read:

13-32a-104.7. Database information from catalytic converter purchasers -- Penalties.

(1) As soon as practicable, but no later than January 1, 2023, a catalytic converter purchaser shall document information for each catalytic converter purchase as required under this section and upload the information to the central database under Section 13-32a-106.

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 47 (2) A catalytic converter purchaser shall document the following information regarding a catalytic
converter purchase:
- 49 (a) the date and time of the catalytic converter purchase;
- 50 (b) the following information regarding the individual selling the catalytic converter:
- 51 (i) the individual's:
- 52 (A) full name and date of birth as they appear on the individual's identification;
- 53 (B) residence address;
- 54 (C) telephone number; and
- 55 (D) signature on a certificate stating that the individual has the legal right to sell the catalytic converter;
- 57 (ii) the type of identification the individual presents under Subsection (2)(b)(i)(A) and the unique
number on the identification;
- 59 (iii) a color digital photograph or still video of the individual taken at the time of the sale, or a clearly
legible photocopy of the individual's identification; and
- 61 (iv) except as provided in Subsection (3), an electronic or tangible legible fingerprint of the individual's
right index finger, or if the right index finger cannot be fingerprinted, a legible fingerprint of the
individual with a notation identifying the finger fingerprinted and the reason why the right index
fingerprint is unavailable;
- 65 (c) the amount paid for the catalytic converter;
- 66 (d) the full name of the individual conducting the purchase on behalf of the catalytic converter
purchaser or the initials or unique identifying employee number, if the catalytic converter purchaser
maintains a record of the initials or unique identifying employee number of the individual;
- 70 (e) an accurate description of the catalytic converter, with available identifying marks, including:
- 72 (i) if available, the name, brand name, number, serial number, model number, manufacturer
information, and size of the catalytic converter;
- 74 (ii) any marks of identification or indicia of ownership on the catalytic converter;
- 75 (iii) the weight of the catalytic converter, if the payment is based on weight; and
- 76 (iv) other unique identifying characteristics of the catalytic converter; and
- 77 (f) a color, digital photograph of the catalytic converter.
- 78 (3) If the individual selling a catalytic converter to the catalytic converter purchaser in a catalytic
converter purchase previously has sold one or more catalytic converters to the catalytic converter

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

purchaser, the catalytic converter purchaser is not required to obtain the fingerprint under Subsection (2)(b)(iv).

(4) A catalytic converter purchaser may not accept a catalytic converter if, upon inspection, it is apparent that the serial number or identifying characteristics have been intentionally defaced on the catalytic converter.

(5) The division shall establish standards and criteria for fingerprint legibility under Subsection (2)(b)(iv) by rule made in accordance with Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act.

(6) A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor and is also subject to civil penalties under Section 13-32a-110.

(7) A dealer, as defined in Section 76-6-1402, that ~~[purchases]~~ makes a catalytic converter purchase under this section shall comply with Title 76, Chapter 6, Part 14, Regulation of Metal Dealers.

~~{Section 5. Section 13-32a-105 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-105. Central database -- Implementation -- Notification.

(1) In accordance with this section, there is created a central database as a statewide repository for:

(a) information that a pawn or secondhand business~~[- or a catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is required to submit in accordance with this chapter; and

(b) the use of a participating law enforcement agency that meets the requirements of Section 13-32a-111.

(2) The division shall:

(a) establish and operate the central database; or

(b) contract with a third party to establish and operate the central database in accordance with Title 63G, Chapter 6a, Utah Procurement Code.

(3) Funding for the creation and operation of the central database shall be from the account.

(4)

(a) An entity that operates the central database may not hold any financial or operating interest in a pawn or secondhand business~~[- or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ in any state.

(b) The division shall verify before a bid is awarded that the selected entity meets the requirements of Subsection (4)(a).

(c) If any entity is awarded a bid under this Subsection (4) and is later found to hold any interest in violation of Subsection (4)(a), the award is subject to being opened again for request for proposal.

(5)

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(a) Beginning January 1, 2020, upon a query by a pawnbroker, the central database shall provide notification of the volume of business an individual seeking to enter into a transaction with the pawnbroker has engaged in with any pawnbroker regulated by this chapter within the previous 30 days based on the records in the central database at the time of the query.

(b) Information entered in the central database shall be retained for five years and shall then be deleted.

(6) Upon request, the entity responsible for establishing and operating the central database under Subsection (2) shall provide technical information and advice for an information technology representative of a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that is required to provide information to the central database.

~~{Section 6. Section 13-32a-106 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-106. Transaction information provided to the central database -- Protected information.

(1)

(a) Except as provided in Subsection 13-32a-104.6(4), a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall transmit electronically in a compatible format information required to be recorded under Sections 13-32a-104, 13-32a-104.5, and 13-32a-104.6~~[, and 13-32a-104.7]~~ that is capable of being transmitted electronically to the central database within 24 hours after entering into the transaction.

(b) The division may specify by rule, made in accordance with Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act, the information capable of being transmitted electronically under Subsection (1)(a).

(2)

~~[(a)]~~ A pawn or secondhand business shall maintain tickets generated by the pawn or secondhand business and shall maintain the tickets in a manner so that the tickets are available to local law enforcement agencies as required by this chapter and as requested by any law enforcement agency as part of an investigation or reasonable random inspection conducted under this chapter.

~~[(b)]~~

~~(i) A catalytic converter purchaser is not required to generate or maintain a ticket for a catalytic converter purchase.]~~

~~[(ii) A catalytic converter purchaser shall make the information documented under Section 13-32a-104.7 available to a local law enforcement agency in accordance with this chapter and upon~~

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

request by a law enforcement agency as part of an investigation or reasonable random inspection conducted under this chapter.]

453 (3)

(a) If a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ experiences a computer or electronic malfunction that affects the business's~~[-or purchaser's]~~ ability to report transactions as required in Subsection (1), the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall immediately notify the division and the local law enforcement agency of the malfunction.

458 (b) The pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall solve the malfunction within three business days after the day on which the business~~[-or purchaser]~~ experiences the malfunction or notify the division and the local law enforcement agency under Subsection (4).

462 (4) If the computer or electronic malfunction under Subsection (3) cannot be solved within three business days after the day on which the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ experiences the malfunction, the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall notify the division and the local law enforcement agency of the reasons for the delay and provide documentation from a reputable computer maintenance company of the reasons why the computer or electronic malfunction cannot be solved within three business days.

469 (5) A computer or electronic malfunction does not suspend the obligation of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to comply with all other provisions of this chapter.

472 (6) During the malfunction under Subsections (3) and (4), the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall:

474 (a) arrange with the local law enforcement agency a mutually acceptable alternative method by which the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ provides the required information to the local law enforcement agency; and

477 (b) a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall maintain the tickets~~[-if applicable,]~~ and other related information required under this chapter in a written form.

480 (7) A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that violates the electronic transaction reporting requirement under this section is subject to an administrative fine of \$50 per day if:

483 (a) the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is unable to submit the information electronically due to a computer or electronic malfunction;

485 (b) the three business day period under Subsection (3) has expired; and

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 486 (c) the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ has not provided documentation
regarding the pawn or secondhand business's~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser's]~~ inability to solve
the malfunction as required under Subsection (4).
- 489 (8) A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is not responsible for a delay in
transmission of information that results from a malfunction in the central database.
- 492 (9) A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor and is also subject to civil penalties under
Section 13-32a-110.
- 494 ~~{Section 7. Section 13-32a-106.5 is amended to read: }~~
- 495 **13-32a-106.5. Confidentiality of pawn and purchase transactions.**
- 496 (1) A ticket, copy of a ticket, or information from a ticket~~[-or information required under Section~~
13-32a-104.7] delivered to a local law enforcement agency or transmitted to the central database
under Section 13-32a-106 is a protected record under Section 63G-2-305.
- 499 (2) In addition to use by the issuing pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~,
the ticket, copy of a ticket, or information from a ticket~~[-or information required under Section~~
13-32a-104.7] may be used only by a law enforcement agency and the division and only for the law
enforcement and administrative enforcement purposes of:
- 504 (a) investigating possible criminal conduct involving the property delivered[:]
505 [(i)] to the pawn or secondhand business in a pawn transaction or secondhand merchandise
transaction;~~[-or]~~
- 507 [(ii)] ~~to a catalytic converter purchaser in a catalytic converter purchase;~~
- 508 (b) investigating a possible violation of the record keeping or reporting requirements of this chapter
when the local law enforcement agency or the division, based on a review of the records and
information received, has reason to believe that a violation has occurred;
- 512 (c) responding to an inquiry from an insurance company investigating a claim for physical loss
of described property by searching the central database to determine if property matching the
description has been delivered to a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~
by another person in a pawn transaction[:]
or secondhand merchandise purchase transaction, ~~[or~~
catalytic converter purchase]~~]~~and if so, obtaining from the central database:
- 518 (i) a description of the property;
- 519 (ii) the name and address of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that
received the property; and

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 521 (iii) the name, address, and date of birth of the conveying individual; and
- 522 (d) taking enforcement action under Section 13-2-5 against a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic~~
converter purchaser].
- 524 (3) An insurance company making a request under Subsection (2)(c) shall provide the police report case
number concerning the described property.
- 526 (4)
- (a) A person may not knowingly and intentionally use, release, publish, or otherwise make available
to any person any information obtained from the central database for any purpose other than those
specified in Subsection (2).
- 529 (b) Each separate violation of Subsection (4)(a) is a class B misdemeanor.
- 530 (c) Each separate violation of Subsection (4)(a) is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed \$250.
- 532 ~~{Section 8. Section 13-32a-108 is amended to read: }~~
- 533 **13-32a-108. Retention of records -- Reasonable inspection.**
- 534 (1) A pawn or secondhand business or local law enforcement agency, whichever has custody of a ticket
or copy of a ticket, shall retain the ticket or copy for no less than three years after the date of the
transaction.
- 537 (2)
- (a) A law enforcement agency or the division may conduct random reasonable inspections of pawn or
secondhand businesses~~[-or catalytic converter purchasers]~~ for the purpose of monitoring compliance
with the requirements of this chapter.
- 540 (b) A law enforcement agency or the division shall conduct an inspection under Subsection (2)(a)
during the regular business hours of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter~~
purchaser].
- 543 (3) A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor and is also subject to civil penalties under
Section 13-32a-110.
- 545 ~~{Section 9. Section 13-32a-109 is amended to read: }~~
- 546 **13-32a-109. Holding period for property -- Return of property -- Penalty.**
- 547 (1)
- (a) A pawnbroker may sell property pawned to the pawnbroker if:
- 548 (i) 15 calendar days have passed after the day on which the pawnbroker submits the information
and any required photograph to the central database;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 550 (ii) the contract period between the pawnbroker and the pledgor expires; and
551 (iii) the pawnbroker has complied with Sections 13-32a-104 and 13-32a-106.
- 552 (b) If property, including scrap jewelry, is purchased by a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~, the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ may sell the property if the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ has held the property for 15 calendar days after the day on which the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ submits the information to the central database, and complied with Sections 13-32a-104, 13-32a-104.6, ~~[13-32a-104.7,]~~and 13-32a-106, except that the pawn or secondhand business is not required to hold precious metals or numismatic items under this Subsection (1)(b).
- 561 (c)
- (i) This Subsection (1) does not preclude a law enforcement agency from requiring a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to hold property if necessary in the course of an investigation.
- 564 (ii) If the property is pawned, the law enforcement agency may require the property be held beyond the terms of the contract between the pledgor and the pawnbroker.
- 566 (iii) If the property is sold to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~, the law enforcement agency may require the property be held if the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ has not sold the article.
- 570 (d) If the law enforcement agency requesting a hold on property under this Subsection (1) is not the local law enforcement agency, the requesting law enforcement agency shall notify the local law enforcement agency of the request and also the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~.
- 574 (2) If a law enforcement agency requires the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to hold property as part of an investigation, the law enforcement agency shall provide to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ a hold form issued by the law enforcement agency, that:
- 578 (a) states the active case number;
- 579 (b) confirms the date of the hold request and the property to be held; and
- 580 (c) facilitates the ability of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to track the property when the prosecution takes over the case.
- 582

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (3) If property is not seized by a law enforcement agency that has placed a hold on the property, the property shall remain in the custody of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ until further disposition by the law enforcement agency, and in accordance with this chapter.
- 586 (4)
- (a) The initial hold by a law enforcement agency is for a period of 90 days.
- 587 (b) If the property is not seized by the law enforcement agency, the property shall remain in the custody of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ and is subject to the hold unless exigent circumstances require the property to be seized by the law enforcement agency.
- 591 (5)
- (a) A law enforcement agency may extend any hold for up to an additional 90 days if circumstances require the extension.
- 593 (b) If there is an extension of a hold under Subsection (5)(a), the requesting law enforcement agency shall notify the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that is subject to the hold before the expiration of the initial 90 days.
- 597 (c) A law enforcement agency may not hold an item for more than the 180 days allowed under Subsections (5)(a) and (b) without obtaining a court order authorizing the hold.
- 599 (6) A hold on property under Subsection (2) takes precedence over any request to claim or purchase the property subject to the hold.
- 601 (7) If an original victim who has complied with Section 13-32a-115 has not been identified and the hold or seizure of the property is terminated, the law enforcement agency requiring the hold or seizure shall within 15 business days after the day on which the termination occurs:
- 605 (a) notify the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ in writing that the hold or seizure has been terminated;
- 607 (b) return the property subject to the seizure to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~; or
- 609 (c) if the property is not returned to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~, advise the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ either in writing or electronically of the specific alternative disposition of the property.
- 613 (8)

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (a) If the original victim who has complied with Section 13-32a-115 has been identified and the hold or seizure of property is terminated, the law enforcement agency requiring the hold or seizure shall:
- 616 (i) document the original victim who has positively identified the property; and
- 617 (ii) provide the documented information concerning the original victim to the prosecuting agency to determine whether continued possession of the property is necessary for purposes of prosecution in accordance with Section 77-11a-301.
- 620 (b) If the prosecuting agency determines that continued possession of the property is not necessary for purposes of prosecution, the prosecuting agency shall provide a written or electronic notification to the law enforcement agency that authorizes the return of the property to an original victim who has complied with Section 13-32a-115.
- 624 (c)
- (i) A law enforcement agency shall promptly provide notice to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ of the authorized return of the property under this Subsection (8).
- 627 (ii) The notice shall identify the original victim, advise the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that the original victim has identified the property, and direct the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to release the property to the original victim at no cost to the original victim.
- 632 (iii) If the property was seized, the notice shall advise that the property will be returned to the original victim within 15 days after the day on which the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ receives the notice, except as provided under Subsection (8)(d).
- 636 (d) The pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall release property under Subsection (8)(c) unless within 15 days after the day on which the notice is received the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ complies with Section 13-32a-116.5.
- 640 (9)
- (a) If the law enforcement agency does not notify the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that a hold on the property has expired, the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall send a letter by registered or certified mail to the law enforcement agency that ordered the hold and inform the agency that the holding period has expired.
- 645 (b) The law enforcement agency shall respond within 30 days by:
- 646 (i) confirming that the hold period has expired and that the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ may manage the property as if acquired in the ordinary course of business; or

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 649 (ii) providing written notice to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that a
court order has continued the period of time for which the item shall be held.
- 652 (10) The written notice under Subsection (9)(b)(ii) is considered provided when:
- 653 (a) personally delivered to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ with a
signed receipt of delivery;
- 655 (b) delivered to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ by registered or
certified mail; or
- 657 (c) delivered by any other means with the mutual assent of the law enforcement agency and the pawn or
secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~.
- 659 (11) If the law enforcement agency does not respond within 30 days under Subsection (9), the pawn or
secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ may manage the property as if acquired in
the ordinary course of business.
- 662 (12) A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor and is also subject to civil penalties under
Section 13-32a-110.
- 664 ~~{Section 10. Section 13-32a-109.5 is amended to read: }~~
- 665 **13-32a-109.5. Seizure of property -- Notification to pawn or secondhand business.**
If a law enforcement agency determines seizure of property pawned or sold to a pawn or
secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is necessary under this chapter during
the course of a criminal investigation, in addition to the hold provisions under Section
- 669 13-32a-109, the law enforcement agency shall:
- 670 (1) notify the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ of the specific property to
be seized; and
- 672 (2) issue to the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ a seizure form approved
by the division and that:
- 674 (a) provides the active case number related to the property to be seized;
- 675 (b) provides the date of the seizure request;
- 676 (c) provides the reason for the seizure;
- 677 (d) describes the property to be seized;
- 678 (e) states each reason the property is necessary during the course of a criminal investigation; and
- 680 (f) includes any information that facilitates the ability of the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic
converter purchaser]~~ to track the property when the prosecution agency takes over the case.

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

~~{Section 11. Section 13-32a-110 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-110. Administrative or civil penalties -- Criminal prosecution.

- (1) A violation of any of the following sections is subject to an administrative or civil penalty of not more than \$500:
- (a) Section 13-32a-104, tickets required to be maintained;
 - (b) Section 13-32a-104.5, database information from coin dealers;
 - (c) Section 13-32a-104.6, database information from automated recycling kiosk operators;
 - ~~[(d) Section 13-32a-104.7, database information from catalytic converter purchasers;]~~
 - ~~[(e)]~~ (d) Section 13-32a-106, transaction information provided to the central database;
 - ~~[(f)]~~ (e) Section 13-32a-108, retention of records;
 - ~~[(g)]~~ (f) Section 13-32a-109, holding period for property;
 - ~~[(h)]~~ (g) Section 13-32a-110.5, transactions with certain individuals prohibited;
 - ~~[(i)]~~ (h) Section 13-32a-111, fees to fund account; or
 - ~~[(j)]~~ (i) Section 13-32a-112.1, annual training.
- (2) This section does not prohibit civil action by a governmental entity regarding the operation or license of a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~.
- (3) The imposition of civil penalties under this section does not prohibit criminal prosecution by a governmental entity for criminal violations of this chapter.

~~{Section 12. Section 13-32a-110.5 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-110.5. Transactions with certain individuals prohibited.

A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ may not engage in a pawn transaction or secondhand merchandise transaction~~[-or catalytic converter purchase]~~ with an individual who:

- (1) is younger than 18 years old; or
- (2) appears to be under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance.

~~{Section 13. Section 13-32a-111 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-111. Fees to fund account.

- (1)
- (a) A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ in operation shall pay an annual fee of no more than \$500, set in accordance with Section 63J-1-504.

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(b) A law enforcement agency within Utah that participates in the use of the central database shall pay an annual fee set in accordance with Section 63J-1-504.

716 (c) A law enforcement agency outside Utah that requests access to the central database shall pay an annual fee set in accordance with Section 63J-1-504.

718 (2) A fee paid under Subsection (1) shall be paid annually to the division on or before January 31.

720 (3) A fee received by the division under this section shall be deposited into the account.

721 (4) The division may only increase fees for a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ under Section 63J-1-504.

723 ~~{Section 14. Section 13-32a-112.1 is amended to read: }~~

724 **13-32a-112.1. Annual training.**

725 (1)

(a) The division shall provide training sessions, whether online or in-person, at least once each year regarding compliance with this chapter and other applicable state laws.

727 (b) A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall ensure that each individual employed by the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ with access to the central database annually completes the training described in Subsection (1)(a) in order for that individual to continue to have access to the central database.

732 (c) A law enforcement agency participating in the use of the central database shall ensure that each individual employed by the law enforcement agency with access to the central database annually completes the training described in Subsection (1)(a) in order for that individual to continue to have access to the central database.

736 (2) The division shall monitor and keep a record of training completion.

737 ~~{Section 15. Section 13-32a-112.5 is amended to read: }~~

738 **13-32a-112.5. Temporary businesses subject to chapter.**

A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ that operates on a temporary basis or from a location that is not a permanent retail location:

741 (1) shall comply with this chapter; and

742 (2) is subject to enforcement of this chapter.

743 ~~{Section 16. Section 13-32a-113 is amended to read: }~~

744 **13-32a-113. Pawnbroker and Secondhand Merchandise Operations Restricted Account.**

746

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(1) There is created within the General Fund a restricted account known as the "Pawnbroker[,] and Secondhand Merchandise[,and Catalytic Converter] Operations Restricted Account."

(2)

(a) The account shall be funded from fees and administrative and civil fines imposed and collected under Sections 13-32a-106, 13-32a-110, and 13-32a-111.

(b) The fees and administrative and civil fines shall be paid to the division, which shall deposit them in the account.

(c) The Legislature shall appropriate funds in the account to the division for:

(i) the costs of providing training required under this chapter;

(ii) the costs of the central database created in Section 13-32a-105; and

(iii) the division's costs of administering this chapter.

~~{Section 17. Section 13-32a-114 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-114. Preemption of local ordinances -- Exceptions.

(1) This chapter preempts town, city, county, and other local ordinances governing pawn or secondhand businesses~~[or catalytic converter purchasers]~~, if the ordinances are more restrictive than the provisions of this chapter or are not consistent with this chapter.

(2) Subsection (1) does not preclude a city, county, or other local governmental unit from:

(a) enacting or enforcing local ordinances concerning public health, safety, or welfare, if the ordinances are uniform and equal in application to pawn and secondhand businesses~~[or catalytic converter purchasers]~~ and other retail businesses or activities;

(b) requiring a pawn or secondhand business~~[or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ to obtain and maintain a business license and providing for revocation of the business license based on multiple violations of Section 76-6-408; or

(c) enacting zoning ordinances that restrict areas where pawn or secondhand businesses~~[or catalytic converter purchasers]~~ and other retail businesses or activities can be located.

~~{Section 18. Section 13-32a-115 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-115. Criminal investigation -- Prosecution -- Property disposition.

(1) If the property pawned or sold to a pawn or secondhand business~~[or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is the subject of a criminal investigation and a hold has been placed on the property under Section 13-32a-109, the original victim shall do the following to establish a claim:

(a) positively identify to law enforcement the property stolen or lost;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 779 (b) if a police report has not already been filed for the original theft or loss of property, file a police
report, and provide for the law enforcement agency information surrounding the original theft or
loss of property; and
- 782 (c) give a sworn statement under penalty of law that:
- 783 (i) claims ownership of the property;
- 784 (ii) references the original theft or loss; and
- 785 (iii) identifies the perpetrator if known.
- 786 (2) The pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ shall retain possession of any
property subject to a hold until a criminal prosecution is commenced relating to the property for
which the hold was placed unless:
- 789 (a) during the course of a criminal investigation the actual physical possession by law enforcement of
the property purchased or pawned is essential for the purpose of forensic testing of the property, or
if the property contains unique or sensitive personal identifying information; or
- 793 (b) an agreement between the original victim and the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic
converter purchaser]~~ to return the property is reached.
- 795 (3)
- (a) Upon the commencement of a criminal prosecution, any property subject to a hold for investigation
under this chapter may be seized by the law enforcement agency that requested the hold.
- 798 (b) Subsequent disposition of the property shall be consistent with this chapter.
- 799 (4) At all times during the course of a criminal investigation and subsequent prosecution, the property
subject to a law enforcement hold shall be kept secure by the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or
catalytic converter purchaser]~~ subject to the hold unless the pawned or purchased property has been
seized by the law enforcement agency pursuant to Section 13-32a-109.5.

804 {Section 19. Section 13-32a-116 is amended to read: }

805 **13-32a-116. Property disposition -- Property subject to prosecution -- Property not used as
evidence.**

When property that is pawned or sold to a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic
converter purchaser]~~ is the subject of a criminal proceeding, and has been seized by law
enforcement pursuant to this chapter, the prosecuting agency shall notify the seizing agency,
the original victim, and the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ in
compliance with Subsection 13-32a-109(8), if the prosecuting agency determines the article is

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

no longer needed as evidence pending resolution of the criminal case.

~~{Section 20. Section 13-32a-116.5 is amended to read: }~~

13-32a-116.5. Contested disposition of property - Procedure.

- (1) If a pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ receives notice from a law enforcement agency under Section 13-32a-109 that property that is the subject of a hold or seizure shall be returned to an identified original victim, the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ may contest the determination and seek a specific alternative disposition if within 15 business days after the day on which the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ receives the notice:
- (a) the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ gives notice to the identified original victim, by certified mail, that the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ contests the determination to return the property to the original victim; and
- (b) the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ files a petition in a court having jurisdiction over the matter to determine rightful ownership of the property as provided in Section 77-11a-305.
- (2) A pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~ is guilty of a class B misdemeanor if the pawn or secondhand business~~[-or catalytic converter purchaser]~~:
- (a) holds or sells property in violation of a notification from a law enforcement agency that the property is to be returned to an original victim; and
- (b) does not comply with the requirements of this section within the time periods specified.

~~{Section 21. Section 63G-2-305 is amended to read: }~~

63G-2-305. Protected records.

The following records are protected if properly classified by a governmental entity:

- (1) trade secrets as defined in Section 13-24-2 if the person submitting the trade secret has provided the governmental entity with the information specified in Section 63G-2-309;
- (2) commercial information or nonindividual financial information obtained from a person if:
- (a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to result in unfair competitive injury to the person submitting the information or would impair the ability of the governmental entity to obtain necessary information in the future;
- (b) the person submitting the information has a greater interest in prohibiting access than the public in obtaining access; and

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 846 (c) the person submitting the information has provided the governmental entity with the information
specified in Section 63G-2-309;
- 848 (3) commercial or financial information acquired or prepared by a governmental entity to the extent that
disclosure would lead to financial speculations in currencies, securities, or commodities that will
interfere with a planned transaction by the governmental entity or cause substantial financial injury
to the governmental entity or state economy;
- 852 (4) records, the disclosure of which could cause commercial injury to, or confer a competitive
advantage upon a potential or actual competitor of, a commercial project entity as defined in
Subsection 11-13-103(4);
- 855 (5) test questions and answers to be used in future license, certification, registration, employment, or
academic examinations;
- 857 (6) records, the disclosure of which would impair governmental procurement proceedings or give an
unfair advantage to any person proposing to enter into a contract or agreement with a governmental
entity, except, subject to Subsections (1) and (2), that this Subsection (6) does not restrict the right
of a person to have access to, after the contract or grant has been awarded and signed by all parties:
- 862 (a) a bid, proposal, application, or other information submitted to or by a governmental entity in
response to:
- 864 (i) an invitation for bids;
- 865 (ii) a request for proposals;
- 866 (iii) a request for quotes;
- 867 (iv) a grant; or
- 868 (v) other similar document; or
- 869 (b) an unsolicited proposal, as defined in Section 63G-6a-712;
- 870 (7) information submitted to or by a governmental entity in response to a request for information,
except, subject to Subsections (1) and (2), that this Subsection (7) does not restrict the right of a
person to have access to the information, after:
- 873 (a) a contract directly relating to the subject of the request for information has been awarded and signed
by all parties; or
- 875 (b)
- (i) a final determination is made not to enter into a contract that relates to the subject of the request for
information; and

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 877 (ii) at least two years have passed after the day on which the request for information is issued;
- 879 (8) records that would identify real property or the appraisal or estimated value of real or personal property, including intellectual property, under consideration for public acquisition before any rights to the property are acquired unless:
- 882 (a) public interest in obtaining access to the information is greater than or equal to the governmental entity's need to acquire the property on the best terms possible;
- 884 (b) the information has already been disclosed to persons not employed by or under a duty of confidentiality to the entity;
- 886 (c) in the case of records that would identify property, potential sellers of the described property have already learned of the governmental entity's plans to acquire the property;
- 889 (d) in the case of records that would identify the appraisal or estimated value of property, the potential sellers have already learned of the governmental entity's estimated value of the property; or
- 892 (e) the property under consideration for public acquisition is a single family residence and the governmental entity seeking to acquire the property has initiated negotiations to acquire the property as required under Section 78B-6-505;
- 895 (9) records prepared in contemplation of sale, exchange, lease, rental, or other compensated transaction of real or personal property including intellectual property, which, if disclosed prior to completion of the transaction, would reveal the appraisal or estimated value of the subject property, unless:
- 899 (a) the public interest in access is greater than or equal to the interests in restricting access, including the governmental entity's interest in maximizing the financial benefit of the transaction; or
- 902 (b) when prepared by or on behalf of a governmental entity, appraisals or estimates of the value of the subject property have already been disclosed to persons not employed by or under a duty of confidentiality to the entity;
- 905 (10) records created or maintained for civil, criminal, or administrative enforcement purposes or audit purposes, or for discipline, licensing, certification, or registration purposes, if release of the records:
- 908 (a) reasonably could be expected to interfere with investigations undertaken for enforcement, discipline, licensing, certification, or registration purposes;
- 910 (b) reasonably could be expected to interfere with audits, disciplinary, or enforcement proceedings;
- 912 (c) would create a danger of depriving a person of a right to a fair trial or impartial hearing;
- 914 (d) reasonably could be expected to disclose the identity of a source who is not generally known outside of government and, in the case of a record compiled in the course of an investigation, disclose

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- information furnished by a source not generally known outside of government if disclosure would compromise the source; or
- 918 (e) reasonably could be expected to disclose investigative or audit techniques, procedures, policies, or
orders not generally known outside of government if disclosure would interfere with enforcement or
audit efforts;
- 921 (11) records the disclosure of which would jeopardize the life or safety of an individual;
- 922 (12) records the disclosure of which would jeopardize the security of governmental property,
governmental programs, or governmental recordkeeping systems from damage, theft, or other
appropriation or use contrary to law or public policy;
- 925 (13) records that, if disclosed, would jeopardize the security or safety of a correctional facility, or
records relating to incarceration, treatment, probation, or parole, that would interfere with the
control and supervision of an offender's incarceration, treatment, probation, or parole;
- 929 (14) records that, if disclosed, would reveal recommendations made to the Board of Pardons and
Parole by an employee of or contractor for the Department of Corrections, the Board of Pardons
and Parole, or the Department of Health and Human Services that are based on the employee's or
contractor's supervision, diagnosis, or treatment of any person within the board's jurisdiction;
- 934 (15) records and audit workpapers that identify audit, collection, and operational procedures and
methods used by the State Tax Commission, if disclosure would interfere with audits or collections;
- 937 (16) records of a governmental audit agency relating to an ongoing or planned audit until the final audit
is released;
- 939 (17) records that are subject to the attorney client privilege;
- 940 (18) records prepared for or by an attorney, consultant, surety, indemnitor, insurer, employee, or
agent of a governmental entity for, or in anticipation of, litigation or a judicial, quasi-judicial, or
administrative proceeding;
- 943 (19)
- (a)
- (i) personal files of a state legislator, including personal correspondence to or from a member of the
Legislature; and
- 945 (ii) notwithstanding Subsection (19)(a)(i), correspondence that gives notice of legislative action or
policy may not be classified as protected under this section; and
- 948 (b)

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (i) an internal communication that is part of the deliberative process in connection with the preparation of legislation between:
- 950 (A) members of a legislative body;
- 951 (B) a member of a legislative body and a member of the legislative body's staff; or
- 952 (C) members of a legislative body's staff; and
- 953 (ii) notwithstanding Subsection (19)(b)(i), a communication that gives notice of legislative action or policy may not be classified as protected under this section;
- 955 (20)
- (a) records in the custody or control of the Office of Legislative Research and General Counsel, that, if disclosed, would reveal a particular legislator's contemplated legislation or contemplated course of action before the legislator has elected to support the legislation or course of action, or made the legislation or course of action public; and
- 960 (b) notwithstanding Subsection (20)(a), the form to request legislation submitted to the Office of Legislative Research and General Counsel is a public document unless a legislator asks that the records requesting the legislation be maintained as protected records until such time as the legislator elects to make the legislation or course of action public;
- 965 (21) a research request from a legislator to a legislative staff member and research findings prepared in response to the request;
- 967 (22) drafts, unless otherwise classified as public;
- 968 (23) records concerning a governmental entity's strategy about:
- 969 (a) collective bargaining; or
- 970 (b) imminent or pending litigation;
- 971 (24) records of investigations of loss occurrences and analyses of loss occurrences that may be covered by the Risk Management Fund, the Employers' Reinsurance Fund, the Uninsured Employers' Fund, or similar divisions in other governmental entities;
- 974 (25) records, other than personnel evaluations, that contain a personal recommendation concerning an individual if disclosure would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy, or disclosure is not in the public interest;
- 977 (26) records that reveal the location of historic, prehistoric, paleontological, or biological resources that if known would jeopardize the security of those resources or of valuable historic, scientific, educational, or cultural information;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 980 (27) records of independent state agencies if the disclosure of the records would conflict with the
fiduciary obligations of the agency;
- 982 (28) records of an institution within the state system of higher education defined in Section 53B-1-102
regarding tenure evaluations, appointments, applications for admissions, retention decisions, and
promotions, which could be properly discussed in a meeting closed in accordance with Title 52,
Chapter 4, Open and Public Meetings Act, provided that records of the final decisions about tenure,
appointments, retention, promotions, or those students admitted, may not be classified as protected
under this section;
- 988 (29) records of the governor's office, including budget recommendations, legislative proposals,
and policy statements, that if disclosed would reveal the governor's contemplated policies or
contemplated courses of action before the governor has implemented or rejected those policies or
courses of action or made them public;
- 992 (30) records of the Office of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst relating to budget analysis, revenue
estimates, and fiscal notes of proposed legislation before issuance of the final recommendations in
these areas;
- 995 (31) records provided by the United States or by a government entity outside the state that are given
to the governmental entity with a requirement that they be managed as protected records if the
providing entity certifies that the record would not be subject to public disclosure if retained by it;
- 999 (32) transcripts, minutes, recordings, or reports of the closed portion of a meeting of a public body
except as provided in Section 52-4-206;
- 1001 (33) records that would reveal the contents of settlement negotiations but not including final settlements
or empirical data to the extent that they are not otherwise exempt from disclosure;
- 1004 (34) memoranda prepared by staff and used in the decision-making process by an administrative law
judge, a member of the Board of Pardons and Parole, or a member of any other body charged by law
with performing a quasi-judicial function;
- 1007 (35) records that would reveal negotiations regarding assistance or incentives offered by or requested
from a governmental entity for the purpose of encouraging a person to expand or locate a business
in Utah, but only if disclosure would result in actual economic harm to the person or place the
governmental entity at a competitive disadvantage, but this section may not be used to restrict access
to a record evidencing a final contract;

1012

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (36) materials to which access must be limited for purposes of securing or maintaining the governmental entity's proprietary protection of intellectual property rights including patents, copyrights, and trade secrets;
- 1015 (37) the name of a donor or a prospective donor to a governmental entity, including an institution within the state system of higher education defined in Section 53B-1-102, and other information concerning the donation that could reasonably be expected to reveal the identity of the donor, provided that:
- 1019 (a) the donor requests anonymity in writing;
- 1020 (b) any terms, conditions, restrictions, or privileges relating to the donation may not be classified protected by the governmental entity under this Subsection (37); and
- 1022 (c) except for an institution within the state system of higher education defined in Section 53B-1-102, the governmental unit to which the donation is made is primarily engaged in educational, charitable, or artistic endeavors, and has no regulatory or legislative authority over the donor, a member of the donor's immediate family, or any entity owned or controlled by the donor or the donor's immediate family;
- 1027 (38) accident reports, except as provided in Sections 41-6a-404, 41-12a-202, and 73-18-13;
- 1028 (39) a notification of workers' compensation insurance coverage described in Section 34A-2-205;
- 1030 (40)
- (a) the following records of an institution within the state system of higher education defined in Section 53B-1-102, which have been developed, discovered, disclosed to, or received by or on behalf of faculty, staff, employees, or students of the institution:
- 1034 (i) unpublished lecture notes;
- 1035 (ii) unpublished notes, data, and information:
- 1036 (A) relating to research; and
- 1037 (B) of:
- 1038 (I) the institution within the state system of higher education defined in Section 53B-1-102; or
- 1040 (II) a sponsor of sponsored research;
- 1041 (iii) unpublished manuscripts;
- 1042 (iv) creative works in process;
- 1043 (v) scholarly correspondence; and
- 1044 (vi) confidential information contained in research proposals;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1045 (b) Subsection (40)(a) may not be construed to prohibit disclosure of public information required
pursuant to Subsection 53B-16-302(2)(a) or (b); and
- 1047 (c) Subsection (40)(a) may not be construed to affect the ownership of a record;
- 1048 (41)
- (a) records in the custody or control of the Office of the Legislative Auditor General that would reveal
the name of a particular legislator who requests a legislative audit prior to the date that audit is
completed and made public; and
- 1051 (b) notwithstanding Subsection (41)(a), a request for a legislative audit submitted to the Office of the
Legislative Auditor General is a public document unless the legislator asks that the records in the
custody or control of the Office of the Legislative Auditor General that would reveal the name of
a particular legislator who requests a legislative audit be maintained as protected records until the
audit is completed and made public;
- 1057 (42) records that provide detail as to the location of an explosive, including a map or other document
that indicates the location of:
- 1059 (a) a production facility; or
- 1060 (b) a magazine;
- 1061 (43) information contained in the statewide database of the Division of Aging and Adult Services
created by Section 26B-6-210;
- 1063 (44) information contained in the Licensing Information System described in Title 80, Chapter 2, Child
Welfare Services;
- 1065 (45) information regarding National Guard operations or activities in support of the National Guard's
federal mission;
- 1067 (46) records provided by any pawn or secondhand business to a law enforcement agency or to
the central database in compliance with Title 13, Chapter 32a, Pawnshop[;] and Secondhand
Merchandise[; ~~and Catalytic Converter~~] Transaction Information Act;
- 1070 (47) information regarding food security, risk, and vulnerability assessments performed by the
Department of Agriculture and Food;
- 1072 (48) except to the extent that the record is exempt from this chapter pursuant to Section 63G-2-106,
records related to an emergency plan or program, a copy of which is provided to or prepared
or maintained by the Division of Emergency Management, and the disclosure of which would
jeopardize:

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1076 (a) the safety of the general public; or
1077 (b) the security of:
- 1078 (i) governmental property;
1079 (ii) governmental programs; or
1080 (iii) the property of a private person who provides the Division of Emergency Management
information;
- 1082 (49) records of the Department of Agriculture and Food that provides for the identification, tracing, or
control of livestock diseases, including any program established under Title 4, Chapter 24, Utah
Livestock Brand and Anti-Theft Act, or Title 4, Chapter 31, Control of Animal Disease;
- 1086 (50) as provided in Section 26B-2-709:
- 1087 (a) information or records held by the Department of Health and Human Services related to a complaint
regarding a provider, program, or facility which the department is unable to substantiate; and
1090 (b) information or records related to a complaint received by the Department of Health and Human
Services from an anonymous complainant regarding a provider, program, or facility;
- 1093 (51) unless otherwise classified as public under Section 63G-2-301 and except as provided under
Section 41-1a-116, an individual's home address, home telephone number, or personal mobile phone
number, if:
- 1096 (a) the individual is required to provide the information in order to comply with a law, ordinance, rule,
or order of a government entity; and
1098 (b) the subject of the record has a reasonable expectation that this information will be kept confidential
due to:
- 1100 (i) the nature of the law, ordinance, rule, or order; and
1101 (ii) the individual complying with the law, ordinance, rule, or order;
- 1102 (52) the portion of the following documents that contains a candidate's residential or mailing address,
if the candidate provides to the filing officer another address or phone number where the candidate
may be contacted:
- 1105 (a) a declaration of candidacy, a nomination petition, or a certificate of nomination, described in Section
20A-9-201, 20A-9-202, 20A-9-203, 20A-9-404, 20A-9-405, 20A-9-408, 20A-9-408.5, 20A-9-502,
or 20A-9-601;
1108 (b) an affidavit of impecuniosity, described in Section 20A-9-201; or
1109 (c) a notice of intent to gather signatures for candidacy, described in Section 20A-9-408;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1110 (53) the name, home address, work addresses, and telephone numbers of an individual that is engaged
in, or that provides goods or services for, medical or scientific research that is:
- 1112 (a) conducted within the state system of higher education, as defined in Section 53B-1-102; and
- 1114 (b) conducted using animals;
- 1115 (54) in accordance with Section 78A-12-203, any record of the Judicial Performance Evaluation
Commission concerning an individual commissioner's vote, in relation to whether a judge meets
or exceeds minimum performance standards under Subsection 78A-12-203(4), and information
disclosed under Subsection 78A-12-203(5)(e);
- 1119 (55) information collected and a report prepared by the Judicial Performance Evaluation Commission
concerning a judge, unless Section 20A-7-702 or Title 78A, Chapter 12, Judicial Performance
Evaluation Commission Act, requires disclosure of, or makes public, the information or report;
- 1123 (56) records provided or received by the Public Lands Policy Coordinating Office in furtherance of any
contract or other agreement made in accordance with Section 63L-11-202;
- 1126 (57) information requested by and provided to the 911 Division under Section 63H-7a-302;
- 1127 (58) in accordance with Section 73-10-33:
- 1128 (a) a management plan for a water conveyance facility in the possession of the Division of Water
Resources or the Board of Water Resources; or
- 1130 (b) an outline of an emergency response plan in possession of the state or a county or municipality;
- 1132 (59) the following records in the custody or control of the Office of Inspector General of Medicaid
Services, created in Section 63A-13-201:
- 1134 (a) records that would disclose information relating to allegations of personal misconduct, gross
mismanagement, or illegal activity of a person if the information or allegation cannot be
corroborated by the Office of Inspector General of Medicaid Services through other documents or
evidence, and the records relating to the allegation are not relied upon by the Office of Inspector
General of Medicaid Services in preparing a final investigation report or final audit report;
- 1140 (b) records and audit workpapers to the extent they would disclose the identity of a person who, during
the course of an investigation or audit, communicated the existence of any Medicaid fraud, waste,
or abuse, or a violation or suspected violation of a law, rule, or regulation adopted under the laws
of this state, a political subdivision of the state, or any recognized entity of the United States, if the
information was disclosed on the condition that the identity of the person be protected;

1147

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (c) before the time that an investigation or audit is completed and the final investigation or final audit report is released, records or drafts circulated to a person who is not an employee or head of a governmental entity for the person's response or information;
- 1150 (d) records that would disclose an outline or part of any investigation, audit survey plan, or audit program; or
- 1152 (e) requests for an investigation or audit, if disclosure would risk circumvention of an investigation or audit;
- 1154 (60) records that reveal methods used by the Office of Inspector General of Medicaid Services, the fraud unit, or the Department of Health and Human Services, to discover Medicaid fraud, waste, or abuse;
- 1157 (61) information provided to the Department of Health and Human Services or the Division of Professional Licensing under Subsections 58-67-304(3) and (4) and Subsections 58-68-304(3) and (4);
- 1160 (62) a record described in Section 63G-12-210;
- 1161 (63) captured plate data that is obtained through an automatic license plate reader system used by a governmental entity as authorized in Section 41-6a-2003;
- 1163 (64) an audio or video recording created by a body-worn camera, as that term is defined in Section 77-7a-103, that records sound or images inside a hospital or health care facility as those terms are defined in Section 78B-3-403, inside a clinic of a health care provider, as that term is defined in Section 78B-3-403, or inside a human service program as that term is defined in Section 26B-2-101, except for recordings that:
 - 1168 (a) depict the commission of an alleged crime;
 - 1169 (b) record any encounter between a law enforcement officer and a person that results in death or bodily injury, or includes an instance when an officer fires a weapon;
 - 1171 (c) record any encounter that is the subject of a complaint or a legal proceeding against a law enforcement officer or law enforcement agency;
 - 1173 (d) contain an officer involved critical incident as defined in Subsection 76-2-408(1)(f); or
 - 1175 (e) have been requested for reclassification as a public record by a subject or authorized agent of a subject featured in the recording;
- 1177 (65) a record pertaining to the search process for a president of an institution of higher education described in Section 53B-2-102, except for application materials for a publicly announced finalist;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1180 (66) an audio recording that is:
- 1181 (a) produced by an audio recording device that is used in conjunction with a device or piece of
equipment designed or intended for resuscitating an individual or for treating an individual with a
life-threatening condition;
- 1184 (b) produced during an emergency event when an individual employed to provide law enforcement, fire
protection, paramedic, emergency medical, or other first responder service:
- 1187 (i) is responding to an individual needing resuscitation or with a life-threatening condition; and
- 1189 (ii) uses a device or piece of equipment designed or intended for resuscitating an individual or for
treating an individual with a life-threatening condition; and
- 1191 (c) intended and used for purposes of training emergency responders how to improve their response to
an emergency situation;
- 1193 (67) records submitted by or prepared in relation to an applicant seeking a recommendation by
the Research and General Counsel Subcommittee, the Budget Subcommittee, or the Audit
Subcommittee, established under Section 36-12-8, for an employment position with the Legislature;
- 1197 (68) work papers as defined in Section 31A-2-204;
- 1198 (69) a record made available to Adult Protective Services or a law enforcement agency under Section
61-1-206;
- 1200 (70) a record submitted to the Insurance Department in accordance with Section 31A-37-201;
- 1202 (71) a record described in Section 31A-37-503;
- 1203 (72) any record created by the Division of Professional Licensing as a result of Subsection
58-37f-304(5) or 58-37f-702(2)(a)(ii);
- 1205 (73) a record described in Section 72-16-306 that relates to the reporting of an injury involving an
amusement ride;
- 1207 (74) except as provided in Subsection 63G-2-305.5(1), the signature of an individual on a political
petition, or on a request to withdraw a signature from a political petition, including a petition or
request described in the following titles:
- 1210 (a) Title 10, Utah Municipal Code;
- 1211 (b) Title 17, Counties;
- 1212 (c) Title 17B, Limited Purpose Local Government Entities - Special Districts;
- 1213 (d) Title 17D, Limited Purpose Local Government Entities - Other Entities; and
- 1214 (e) Title 20A, Election Code;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1215 (75) except as provided in Subsection 63G-2-305.5(2), the signature of an individual in a voter
registration record;
- 1217 (76) except as provided in Subsection 63G-2-305.5(3), any signature, other than a signature described
in Subsection (74) or (75), in the custody of the lieutenant governor or a local political subdivision
collected or held under, or in relation to, Title 20A, Election Code;
- 1220 (77) a Form I-918 Supplement B certification as described in Title 77, Chapter 38, Part 5, Victims
Guidelines for Prosecutors Act;
- 1222 (78) a record submitted to the Insurance Department under Section 31A-48-103;
- 1223 (79) personal information, as defined in Section 63G-26-102, to the extent disclosure is prohibited
under Section 63G-26-103;
- 1225 (80) an image taken of an individual during the process of booking the individual into jail, unless:
- 1227 (a) the individual is convicted of a criminal offense based upon the conduct for which the individual
was incarcerated at the time the image was taken;
- 1229 (b) a law enforcement agency releases or disseminates the image:
- 1230 (i) after determining that the individual is a fugitive or an imminent threat to an individual or to
public safety and releasing or disseminating the image will assist in apprehending the individual or
reducing or eliminating the threat; or
- 1233 (ii) to a potential witness or other individual with direct knowledge of events relevant to a criminal
investigation or criminal proceeding for the purpose of identifying or locating an individual in
connection with the criminal investigation or criminal proceeding;
- 1237 (c) a judge orders the release or dissemination of the image based on a finding that the release or
dissemination is in furtherance of a legitimate law enforcement interest; or
- 1239 (d) the image is displayed to a person who is permitted to view the image under Section 17-22-30[-] ;
- 1241 (81) a record:
- 1242 (a) concerning an interstate claim to the use of waters in the Colorado River system;
- 1243 (b) relating to a judicial proceeding, administrative proceeding, or negotiation with a representative
from another state or the federal government as provided in Section 63M-14-205; and
- 1246 (c) the disclosure of which would:
- 1247 (i) reveal a legal strategy relating to the state's claim to the use of the water in the Colorado River
system;

1249

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (ii) harm the ability of the Colorado River Authority of Utah or river commissioner to negotiate the best terms and conditions regarding the use of water in the Colorado River system; or
- 1252

(iii) give an advantage to another state or to the federal government in negotiations regarding the use of water in the Colorado River system;
- 1254

(82) any part of an application described in Section 63N-16-201 that the Governor's Office of Economic Opportunity determines is nonpublic, confidential information that if disclosed would result in actual economic harm to the applicant, but this Subsection (82) may not be used to restrict access to a record evidencing a final contract or approval decision;
- 1259

(83) the following records of a drinking water or wastewater facility:
- 1260

(a) an engineering or architectural drawing of the drinking water or wastewater facility; and
- 1262

(b) except as provided in Section 63G-2-106, a record detailing tools or processes the drinking water or wastewater facility uses to secure, or prohibit access to, the records described in Subsection (83)(a);
- 1265

(84) a statement that an employee of a governmental entity provides to the governmental entity as part of the governmental entity's personnel or administrative investigation into potential misconduct involving the employee if the governmental entity:
- 1268

(a) requires the statement under threat of employment disciplinary action, including possible termination of employment, for the employee's refusal to provide the statement; and
- 1271

(b) provides the employee assurance that the statement cannot be used against the employee in any criminal proceeding;
- 1273

(85) any part of an application for a Utah Fits All Scholarship account described in Section 53F-6-402 or other information identifying a scholarship student as defined in Section 53F-6-401;
- 1276

(86) a record:
- 1277

(a) concerning a claim to the use of waters in the Great Salt Lake;
- 1278

(b) relating to a judicial proceeding, administrative proceeding, or negotiation with a person concerning the claim, including a representative from another state or the federal government; and
- 1281

(c) the disclosure of which would:
- 1282

(i) reveal a legal strategy relating to the state's claim to the use of the water in the Great Salt Lake;
- 1284

(ii) harm the ability of the Great Salt Lake commissioner to negotiate the best terms and conditions regarding the use of water in the Great Salt Lake; or
- 1286

(iii) give an advantage to another person including another state or to the federal government in negotiations regarding the use of water in the Great Salt Lake; and

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1288 (87) a consumer complaint described in Section 13-2-11, unless the consumer complaint is reclassified
as public as described in Subsection 13-2-11(4).
- 1290 (88) a record of the Utah water agent, appointed under Section 73-10g-702:
- 1291 (a) concerning a claim to the use of waters;
- 1292 (b) relating to a judicial proceeding, administrative proceeding, or negotiation with a representative
from another state, a tribe, the federal government, or other government entity as provided in Title
73, Chapter 10g, Part 6, Utah Water Agent; and
- 1296 (c) the disclosure of which would:
- 1297 (i) reveal a legal strategy relating to the state's claim to the use of the water;
- 1298 (ii) harm the ability of the Utah water agent to negotiate the best terms and conditions regarding the use
of water; or
- 1300 (iii) give an advantage to another state, a tribe, the federal government, or other government entity in
negotiations regarding the use of water.

93 Section 2. Section **76-6-404** is amended to read:

94 **76-6-404. Theft -- Elements.**

- 1304 (1) Terms defined in Section 76-1-101.5 apply to this section.
- 1305 (2) An actor commits theft if the actor obtains or exercises unauthorized control over another person's
property with a purpose to deprive the person of the person's property.
- 1307 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:
- 1308 (a) a second degree felony if the:
- 1309 (i) value of the property is or exceeds \$5,000;
- 1310 (ii) property stolen is a firearm or an operable motor vehicle; or
- 1311 (iii) property is stolen from the person of another;
- 1312 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1313 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1314 ~~[(ii) the property is:]~~
- 1315 ~~[(A) a catalytic converter as defined under Section 76-6-1402; or]~~
- 1316 ~~[(B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item as defined under Section 76-6-1402 if the value is less
than \$5,000 and the suspect metal is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead
battery;]~~

1319

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

~~[(iii)]~~ (ii) the value of the property is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:

1324 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;

1325 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or

1326 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A)]~~ (3)(b)(ii) or (B);

1328 ~~[(iv)]~~ (iii)

(A) the value of property is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;

1329 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years; and

1331 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or

1333 ~~[(v)]~~ (iv) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if the prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based;

1338 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:

1339 (i) the value of the property stolen is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;

1340 (ii)

(A) the value of property is less than \$500;

1341 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years; and

1343 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or

1345 (iii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based; or

1349 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the property stolen is less than \$500 and the theft is not an offense under Subsection (3)(c).

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 142 Section 3. Section **76-6-405** is amended to read:
- 143 **76-6-405. Theft by deception.**
- 1353 (1)
- (a) As used in this section, "puffing" means an exaggerated commendation of wares or worth in a communication addressed to an individual, group, or the public.
- 1355 (b) Terms defined in Section 76-1-101.5 apply to this section.
- 1356 (2)
- (a) An actor commits theft by deception if the actor obtains or exercises control over property of another person:
- 1358 (i) by deception; and
- 1359 (ii) with a purpose to deprive the other person of property.
- 1360 (b) The deception described in Subsection (2)(a)(i) and the deprivation described in Subsection (2)(a)(ii) may occur at separate times.
- 1362 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:
- 1363 (a) a second degree felony if the:
- 1364 (i) value of the property is or exceeds \$5,000; or
- 1365 (ii) property stolen is a firearm or an operable motor vehicle;
- 1366 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1367 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1368 ~~[(ii) the property:]~~
- 1369 ~~[(A) is a catalytic converter as defined under Section 76-6-1402; or]~~
- 1370 ~~[(B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item as defined under Section 76-6-1402 if the value is less than \$5,000 and the suspect metal is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead battery;]~~
- 1373 ~~[(iii)]~~ (ii) the value of the property is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:
- 1378 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;
- 1379 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or
- 1380 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection ~~{F}~~ (3)(b)(iii)(A) or (B) (3)(b)(ii)(A) or (B);

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1382 ~~[(iv)]~~ (iii)
 (A) the value of property is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1383 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years;
 and
- 1385 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering
 the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1387 ~~[(v)]~~ (iv) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in
 Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if the prior
 offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the
 offense upon which the current conviction is based;
- 1392 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:
- 1393 (i) the value of the property stolen is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1394 (ii)
 (A) the value of property is less than \$500;
- 1395 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years;
 and
- 1397 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering
 the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1399 (iii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A)~~
 ~~through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within
 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current
 conviction is based; or
- 1403 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the property stolen is less than \$500 and the theft is not an
 offense under Subsection (3)(c).
- 1405 (4) Theft by deception does not occur when there is only:
- 1406 (a) falsity as to matters having no pecuniary significance; or
- 1407 (b) puffing by statements unlikely to deceive an ordinary person in the group addressed.
- 199 Section 4. Section **76-6-406** is amended to read:
- 200 **76-6-406. Theft by extortion.**
- 1410 (1)
 (a) As used in this section, extortion occurs when an actor threatens to:

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1411 (i) cause physical harm in the future to the person threatened, to any other person, or to property at
any time;
- 1413 (ii) subject the person threatened or any other person to physical confinement or restraint;
- 1415 (iii) engage in other conduct constituting a crime;
- 1416 (iv) accuse any person of a crime or expose any person to hatred, contempt, or ridicule;
- 1418 (v) reveal any information sought to be concealed by the person threatened;
- 1419 (vi) testify, provide information, or withhold testimony or information with respect to a person's
legal claim or defense;
- 1421 (vii) take action as an official against anyone or anything, or withhold official action, or cause such
action or withholding;
- 1423 (viii) bring about or continue a strike, boycott, or other similar collective action to obtain property
that is not demanded or received for the benefit of the group that the actor purports to represent;
or
- 1426 (ix) do any other act which would not in itself substantially benefit the actor but which would harm
substantially any other person with respect to that person's health, safety, business, calling,
career, financial condition, reputation, or personal relationships.
- 1430 (b) Terms defined in Section 76-1-101.5 apply to this section.
- 1431 (2) An actor commits theft by extortion if the actor obtains or exercises control over the property of
another person by extortion and with a purpose to deprive the person of the person's property.
- 1434 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:
- 1435 (a) a second degree felony if the:
- 1436 (i) value of the property is or exceeds \$5,000;
- 1437 (ii) property stolen is a firearm or an operable motor vehicle; or
- 1438 (iii) property is stolen from the person of another;
- 1439 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1440 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1441 [(ii) the property is:]
- 1442 [(A) a catalytic converter as defined under Section 76-6-1402; or]
- 1443 [(B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item as defined under Section 76-6-1402 if the value is less
than \$5,000 and the suspect metal is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead
battery;]

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1446 ~~[(iii)]~~ (ii) the value of the property is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of
any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date
of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at
least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:
- 1451 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;
- 1452 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or
- 1453 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) or (B)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) or (B);
- 1455 ~~[(iv)]~~ (iii)
 (A) the value of property is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1456 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years;
 and
- 1458 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering
 the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1460 ~~[(v)]~~ (iv) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in
 Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if the prior
 offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the
 offense upon which the current conviction is based;
- 1465 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:
- 1466 (i) the value of the property stolen is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1467 (ii)
 (A) the value of property is less than \$500;
- 1468 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years;
 and
- 1470 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering
 the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1472 (iii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A)~~
~~through (3)(b)(iii)(C)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within
10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current
conviction is based; or
- 1476 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the property stolen is less than \$500 and the theft is not an
 offense under Subsection (3)(c).

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

1478 (4)

(a) A person who is adversely impacted by the conduct prohibited in Subsection (2) may bring a civil action for equitable relief and damages.

1480 (b) In accordance with Section 78B-2-305, a person who brings an action under Subsection (4)(a) shall commence the action within three years after the day on which the cause of action arises.

1483 ~~{Section 25. Section 76-6-408 is amended to read: }~~

1484 **76-6-408. Theft by receiving stolen property -- Duties of pawnbrokers, secondhand businesses, and coin dealers.**

1486 (1)

(a) As used in this section:

1487 ~~[(i) "Catalytic converter purchaser" means the same as that term is defined in Section 13-32a-102.]~~

1489 ~~[(ii)]~~ (i) "Coin dealer" means the same as that term is defined in Section 13-32a-102.

1490 ~~[(iii)]~~ (ii) "Pawnbroker" means the same as that term is defined in Section 13-32a-102.

1491 ~~[(iv)]~~ (iii) "Receives" means acquiring possession, control, title, or lending on the security of the property.

1493 ~~[(v) "Scrap metal processor" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.]~~

1495 ~~[(vi)]~~ (iv) "Secondhand actor" means:

1496 (A) a pawnbroker;

1497 (B) a person who has or operates a business dealing in or collecting used or secondhand merchandise or personal property; or

1499 (C) an agent, employee, or representative of a pawnbroker or person who buys, receives, or obtains property.

1501 (b) Terms defined in Section 76-1-101.5 apply to this section.

1502 (2) An actor commits theft by receiving stolen property if the actor receives, retains, or disposes of the property of another knowing that the property is stolen, or believing that the property is probably stolen, or who conceals, sells, withholds, or aids in concealing, selling, or withholding the property from the owner, knowing or believing the property to be stolen, intending to deprive the owner of the property.

1507 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:

1508 (a) a second degree felony if:

1509 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$5,000; or

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1510 (ii) the property is a firearm or an operable motor vehicle;
- 1511 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1512 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1513 (ii) the property is:
- 1514 (A) a catalytic converter as defined under Section 76-6-1402; or
- 1515 (B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item as defined under Section 76-6-1402 if the value is less than the \$5,000 and the suspect metal is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead battery;
- 1518 (iii) the value of the property is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:
- 1523 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;
- 1524 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or
- 1525 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection (3)(b)(iii)(A) or (B); or
- 1526 (iv) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in Subsections (3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C), if the prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based;
- 1530 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:
- 1531 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500; or
- 1532 (ii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections (3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based; or
- 1536 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the property is less than \$500 and the theft is not an offense under Subsection (3)(c).
- 1538 (4) Except as provided in Subsection (5), the knowledge or belief required under Subsection (2) is presumed in the case of an actor who:
- 1540 (a) is found in possession or control of other property stolen on a separate occasion; or
- 1541 (b) has received other stolen property within the year preceding the receiving offense charged.
- 1543 (5)

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(a) The knowledge or belief required under Subsection (2) may only be presumed of a secondhand actor if the secondhand actor does not substantially comply with the material requirements of Section 13-32a-104.

1546 (b) The knowledge or belief required under Subsection (2) may only be presumed of a coin dealer or an employee of a coin dealer if the coin dealer or the employee of the coin dealer does not substantially comply with the requirements of Section 13-32a-104.5.

1550 ~~[(e) The knowledge or belief required under Subsection (2) may only be presumed of a catalytic converter purchaser if the catalytic converter purchaser does not substantially comply with the material requirements of Section 13-32a-104.7.]~~

1553 ~~[(6) Unless acting as a catalytic converter purchaser, Subsection (5)(c) does not apply to a scrap metal processor.]~~

1555 ~~[(7)]~~ (6) This section does not preclude the admission of evidence in accordance with the Utah Rules of Evidence.

1557 ~~[(8)]~~ (7) An actor who violates Subsection (2) is civilly liable for three times the amount of actual damages, if any sustained by the plaintiff, and for costs of suit and reasonable attorney fees.

274 Section 5. Section 5 is enacted to read:

275 **76-6-415. Metal or catalytic converter theft.**

1562 (1)

(a) As used in this section:

1563 (i) "Catalytic converter" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.

1564 (ii) "Ferrous metal" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.

1565 (iii)

(A) "Metal" means nonferrous metal, ferrous metal, or regulated metal.

1566 (B) "Metal" includes suspect metal items.

1567 (C) "Metal" does not include jewelry.

1568 (iv) "Nonferrous metal" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.

1569 (v) "Regulated metal" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.

1570 (vi) "Suspect metal items" means the same as that term is defined in Section 76-6-1402.

1572 (b) Terms defined in Sections 76-1-101.5 and 76-6-401 apply to this section.

1573

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (2) An actor commits metal or catalytic converter theft if the actor obtains or exercises unauthorized control over another person's metal or catalytic converter with a purpose to deprive the person of the person's metal or catalytic converter.
- 1575 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:
- 1576 (a) a second degree felony if:
- 1577 (i) the value of the metal is or exceeds \$5,000; or
- 1578 (ii) the metal is stolen from the person of another;
- 1579 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1580 (i) the value of the property is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1581 (ii) the property is:
- 1582 (A) a catalytic converter; or
- 1583 (B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item if the value is less than \$5,000 and the suspect metal item is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead battery;
- 1586 (iii) the value of the metal is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:
- 1591 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;
- 1592 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or
- 1593 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection (3)(b)(iii)(A) or (B);
- 1594 (iv)
- (A) the value of the metal is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1595 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the actor has committed any theft within the past five years;
and
- 1597 (C) the actor has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the actor from entering the property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1599 (v) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in Subsections (3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C), if the prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based;
- 1603 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1604 (i) the value of the metal stolen is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
1605 (ii)
(A) the value of the metal is less than \$500;
1606 (B) the theft occurs on a property where the actor has committed any theft within the past five years;
and
1608 (C) the actor has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the actor from entering the
property pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
1610 (iii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections (3)(b)(iii)(A)
through (3)(b)(iii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the
current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based; or
1614 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the metal stolen is less than \$500 and the theft is not an
offense under Subsection (3)(c).
- 331 Section 6. Section **76-6-602** is amended to read:
332 **76-6-602. Retail theft.**
- 1618 (1) Terms defined in Sections 76-1-101.5 and 76-6-601 apply to this section.
1619 (2) An actor commits retail theft if the actor knowingly:
1620 (a) takes possession of, conceals, carries away, transfers or causes to be carried away or transferred, any
merchandise displayed, held, stored, or offered for sale in a retail mercantile establishment with the
intention of:
1623 (i) retaining the merchandise; or
1624 (ii) depriving the merchant permanently of the possession, use or benefit of such merchandise without
paying the retail value of the merchandise;
1626 (b)
(i) alters, transfers, or removes any label, price tag, marking, indicia of value, or any other markings
which aid in determining value of any merchandise displayed, held, stored, or offered for sale, in a
retail mercantile establishment; and
1629 (ii) attempts to purchase the merchandise described in Subsection (2)(b)(i) personally or in consort with
another at less than the retail value with the intention of depriving the merchant of the retail value of
the merchandise;
1632

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (c) transfers any merchandise displayed, held, stored, or offered for sale in a retail mercantile establishment from the container in or on which the merchandise is displayed to any other container with the intention of depriving the merchant of the retail value of the merchandise;
- 1636 (d) under-rings with the intention of depriving the merchant of the retail value of the merchandise; or
- 1638 (e) removes a shopping cart from the premises of a retail mercantile establishment with the intent of depriving the merchant of the possession, use, or benefit of the shopping cart.
- 1641 (3) A violation of Subsection (2) is:
- 1642 (a) a second degree felony if the:
- 1643 (i) value of the merchandise or shopping cart is or exceeds \$5,000;
- 1644 (ii) merchandise stolen is a firearm or an operable motor vehicle; or
- 1645 (b) a third degree felony if:
- 1646 (i) the value of the merchandise is or exceeds \$1,500 but is less than \$5,000;
- 1647 ~~[(ii) the merchandise is:]~~
- 1648 ~~[(A) a catalytic converter as defined under Section 76-6-1402; or]~~
- 1649 ~~[(B) 25 pounds or more of a suspect metal item as defined under Section 76-6-1402 if the value is less than \$5,000 and the suspect metal is made of or contains aluminum or copper and is not a lead battery;]~~
- 1652 ~~[(iii)]~~ (ii) the value of the merchandise or shopping cart is or exceeds \$500 and the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the following offenses, if each prior offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current conviction is based and at least one of those convictions is for a class A misdemeanor:
- 1657 (A) any theft, any robbery, or any burglary with intent to commit theft;
- 1658 (B) any offense under Part 5, Fraud; or
- 1659 (C) any attempt to commit any offense under Subsection ~~[(3)(b)(iii)(A) or (B)]~~ (3)(b)(ii)(A) or (B);
- 1661 ~~[(iv)]~~ (iii)
- (A) the value of merchandise or shopping cart is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1663 (B) the theft occurs in a retail mercantile establishment or on the premises of a retail mercantile establishment where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years; and
- 1666 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering the retail mercantile establishment or premises of a retail mercantile establishment pursuant to Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1669 [(+)] (iv) the actor has been previously convicted of a felony violation of any of the offenses listed in
Subsections [~~(3)(b)(iii)(A) through (3)(b)(iii)(C)~~] (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if the prior
offense was committed within 10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the
offense upon which the current conviction is based;
- 1674 (c) a class A misdemeanor if:
- 1675 (i) the value of the merchandise or shopping cart stolen is or exceeds \$500 but is less than \$1,500;
- 1677 (ii)
(A) the value of merchandise or shopping cart is less than \$500;
- 1678 (B) the theft occurs in a retail mercantile establishment or premises of a retail mercantile establishment
where the offender has committed any theft within the past five years; and
- 1681 (C) the offender has received written notice from the merchant prohibiting the offender from entering
the retail mercantile establishment or premises of a retail mercantile establishment pursuant to
Subsection 78B-3-108(4); or
- 1684 (iii) the actor has been twice before convicted of any of the offenses listed in Subsections [~~(3)(b)(iii)(A)~~
~~through (3)(b)(iii)(C)~~] (3)(b)(ii)(A) through (3)(b)(ii)(C), if each prior offense was committed within
10 years before the date of the current conviction or the date of the offense upon which the current
conviction is based; or
- 1688 (d) a class B misdemeanor if the value of the merchandise or shopping cart stolen is less than \$500 and
the theft is not an offense under Subsection (3)(c).
- 405 Section 7. Section **76-6-1402** is amended to read:
- 406 **76-6-1402. Definitions.**
As used in this part:
- 1693 (1) "Catalytic converter" means a motor vehicle exhaust system component that reduces vehicle
emissions by breaking down harmful exhaust emissions.
- 1695 (2) "Dealer" means:
- 1696 (a) a scrap metal processor or secondary metals dealer or recycler, but does not include:
- 1697 (i) junk dealers as defined in Section 76-6-1402;
- 1698 (ii) solid waste management facilities as defined in Section 19-6-502; or
- 1699 (iii) the following businesses that are authorized to accept delivery of used lead batteries for recycling
under Sections 19-6-603, 19-6-604, and 19-6-605:
- 1701 (A) retailers;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1702 (B) wholesalers;
- 1703 (C) battery manufacturers; and
- 1704 (D) secondary lead smelters.
- 1705 (b) a metals refiner.
- 1706 (3) "Ferrous metal" means a metal that contains significant quantities of iron or steel.
- 1707 (4) "Identification" means a form of positive identification issued by a state of the United States or the United States federal government that:
- 1709 (a) contains a numerical identifier and a photograph of the person identified;
- 1710 (b) provides the date of birth of the person identified; and
- 1711 (c) includes a state identification card, a state driver license, a United States military identification card, or a United States passport.
- 1713 (5) "Junk dealer" means all persons, firms, or corporations engaged in the business of purchasing or selling secondhand or castoff material, including ropes, cordage, bottles, bagging, rags, rubber, paper, and other like materials, but not including regulated metal.
- 1716 (6) "Local law enforcement agency" means the law enforcement agency that has jurisdiction over the area where the dealer's business is located.
- 1718 (7) "Metals refiner" means an individual or business that refines or melts any regulated metal, but does not include an individual or business that primarily uses ore, concentrate, or other primary materials in refining, melting, or producing any regulated metal.
- 1721 (8) "Nonferrous metal":
- 1722 (a) means a metal that does not contain significant quantities of iron or steel; and
- 1723 (b) includes copper, brass, aluminum, bronze, lead, zinc, nickel, and their alloys.
- 1724 (9)
- (a) "Regulated metal" means any item composed primarily of nonferrous metal, except as provided in Subsection (9)(c).
- 1726 (b) "Regulated metal" includes:
- 1727 (i) aluminum, brass, copper, lead, chromium, tin, nickel, or alloys of these metals, except under Subsection (9)(c), and lead that is a part of an automotive or industrial lead battery;
- 1730 (ii) property that is a regulated metal and that is owned by, and also identified by marking or other means as the property of:
- 1732 (A) a telephone, cable, electric, water, or other utility; or

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1733 (B) a railroad company;
- 1734 (iii) unused and undamaged building construction materials made of metal or alloy, including:
- 1736 (A) copper pipe, tubing, or wiring; and
- 1737 (B) aluminum wire, siding, downspouts, or gutters;
- 1738 (iv) oil well rigs, including any part of the rig;
- 1739 (v) nonferrous materials, stainless steel, and nickel; and
- 1740 (vi) irrigation pipe.
- 1741 (c) "Regulated metal" does not include:
- 1742 (i) ferrous metal, except as provided in Subsection (9)(b)(ii) or (iv);
- 1743 (ii) household-generated recyclable materials;
- 1744 (iii) items composed wholly of light iron or sheet steel;
- 1745 (iv) aluminum beverage containers; or
- 1746 (v) containers used solely for containing food.
- 1747 (10) "Scrap metal processor" means any person:
- 1748 (a) who, from a fixed location, utilizes machinery and equipment for processing and manufacturing
iron, steel, or nonferrous scrap into prepared grades; and
- 1750 (b) whose principal product is scrap iron, scrap steel, or nonferrous metallic scrap, not including
precious metals, for sale for remelting purposes.
- 1752 (11) "Secondary metals dealer or recycler" means any person who:
- 1753 (a) is engaged in the business of purchasing, collecting, or soliciting regulated metal; or
- 1754 (b) operates or maintains a facility where regulated metal is purchased or kept for shipment, sale,
transfer, or salvage.
- 1756 (12) "Suspect metal items" are the following items made of regulated metal:
- 1757 (a) manhole covers and sewer grates;
- 1758 (b) gas meters and water meters;
- 1759 (c) traffic signs, street signs, aluminum street light poles, communications transmission towers, and
guard rails;
- 1761 (d) grave site monument vases and monument plaques;
- 1762 (e) any monument plaque;
- 1763 (f) brass or bronze bar stock and bar ends;
- 1764 (g) ingots;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1765 (h) nickel and nickel alloys containing greater than 50% nickel;
- 1766 (i) #1 and #2 copper as defined by the most recent [~~institute of Scrap Recycling Industries, Inc.,~~
~~Scrap Specifications Circular~~] materials specifications circular issued by the Recycled Materials
Association;
- 1769 (j) unused and undamaged building materials, including:
- 1770 (i) greenline copper;
- 1771 (ii) copper pipe, tubing, or wiring; and
- 1772 (iii) aluminum wire, siding, downspouts, or gutters;
- 1773 (k) catalytic converters;
- 1774 (l) automotive and industrial lead batteries; [-]and
- 1775 (m) wire that has been burned or that has the appearance of having been burned.
- 1776 ~~{Section 29. Section 76-6-1406 is amended to read: }~~
- 1777 **76-6-1406. Restrictions on the purchase of regulated metal -- Exemption.**
- 1778 (1) A dealer may conduct purchase transactions involving regulated metal only between the hours of 6
a.m. and 7 p.m.
- 1780 (2) Except when the dealer pays a government entity by check for regulated metal, the dealer may not
purchase any of the following regulated metal without obtaining and keeping on file reasonable
documentation that the seller is an employee, agent, or contractor of a governmental entity who is
authorized to sell the item of regulated metal property on behalf of the governmental entity:
- 1785 (a) a manhole cover or sewer grate;
- 1786 (b) an electric light pole; or
- 1787 (c) a guard rail.
- 1788 (3)
- (a) A dealer may not purchase suspect metal without obtaining the information under Subsection (3)(b)
identifying the owner of the suspect metal.
- 1790 (b) The owner of the suspect metal shall provide in writing:
- 1791 (i) the owner's telephone number;
- 1792 (ii) the owner's business or residential address, which may not be a post box;
- 1793 (iii) a copy of the owner's driver license; and
- 1794 (iv) a signed statement that the person is the lawful owner of the suspect metal and authorizes the seller,
identified by name, to sell the suspect metal.

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1796 (c) The dealer shall keep the identifying information provided in Subsection (3)(b) on file for not less
than one year.
- 1798 (4) Transactions with businesses that have an established account with the dealer are exempt from the
requirements of Subsections (2) and (3) if the business holds a valid business license, and:
- 1801 (a)
- (i) the dealer has on file a statement from the business identifying those employees authorized to sell all
metals to the dealer; and
- 1803 (ii) the dealer conducts regulated metal transactions only with those identified employees of the
business and records the name of the employee when recording the transaction;
- 1806 (b) the dealer has on file reasonable documentation from the business that any person verified as
representing the business as an employee, and whom the dealer has verified is an employee, may
sell regulated metal; or
- 1809 (c) the dealer makes payment for regulated metal purchased from a person by issuing a check to the
business employing the seller.
- 1811 [~~(5) If a dealer is a catalytic converter purchaser as defined in Section 13-32a-102, the dealer shall
comply with the requirements in Title 13, Chapter 32a, Pawnshop, Secondhand Merchandise, and
Catalytic Converter Transaction Information Act.]~~
- 1814 [~~(6)~~] (5) A dealer who violates this section is subject to the penalties described in Section 76-6-1406.1.
- 491 Section 8. Section **76-10-1602** is amended to read:
- 492 **76-10-1602. Definitions.**
- As used in this part:
- 1819 (1) "Enterprise" means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, business trust,
association, or other legal entity, and any union or group of individuals associated in fact although
not a legal entity, and includes illicit as well as licit entities.
- 1822 (2) "Pattern of unlawful activity" means engaging in conduct which constitutes the commission of
at least three episodes of unlawful activity, which episodes are not isolated, but have the same
or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of commission, or otherwise are
interrelated by distinguishing characteristics. Taken together, the episodes shall demonstrate
continuing unlawful conduct and be related either to each other or to the enterprise. At least one of
the episodes comprising a pattern of unlawful activity shall have occurred after July 31, 1981. The

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

most recent act constituting part of a pattern of unlawful activity as defined by this part shall have occurred within five years of the commission of the next preceding act alleged as part of the pattern.

- 1832 (3) "Person" includes any individual or entity capable of holding a legal or beneficial interest in property, including state, county, and local governmental entities.
- 1834 (4) "Unlawful activity" means to directly engage in conduct or to solicit, request, command, encourage, or intentionally aid another person to engage in conduct which would constitute any offense described by the following crimes or categories of crimes, or to attempt or conspire to engage in an act which would constitute any of those offenses, regardless of whether the act is in fact charged or indicted by any authority or is classified as a misdemeanor or a felony:
- 1840 (a) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 13, Chapter 10, Unauthorized Recording Practices Act;
- 1842 (b) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 19, Environmental Quality Code, Sections 19-1-101 through 19-7-109;
- 1844 (c) taking, destroying, or possessing wildlife or parts of wildlife for the primary purpose of sale, trade, or other pecuniary gain under Title 23A, Wildlife Resources Act, or Section 23A-5-311;
- 1847 (d) false claims for medical benefits, kickbacks, or other acts prohibited under Title 26B, Chapter 3, Part 11, Utah False Claims Act, Sections 26B-3-1101 through 26B-3-1112;
- 1849 (e) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 32B, Chapter 4, Criminal Offenses and Procedure Act;
- 1851 (f) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 57, Chapter 11, Utah Uniform Land Sales Practices Act;
- 1853 (g) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 58, Chapter 37, Utah Controlled Substances Act, or Title 58, Chapter 37b, Imitation Controlled Substances Act, Title 58, Chapter 37c, Utah Controlled Substance Precursor Act, or Title 58, Chapter 37d, Clandestine Drug Lab Act;
- 1857 (h) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 61, Chapter 1, Utah Uniform Securities Act;
- 1859 (i) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions under Title 63G, Chapter 6a, Utah Procurement Code;
- 1861 (j) assault under Section 76-5-102;
- 1862 (k) aggravated assault under Section 76-5-103;
- 1863 (l) a threat of terrorism under Section 76-5-107.3;
- 1864 (m) a criminal homicide offense under Section 76-5-201;
- 1865 (n) kidnapping under Section 76-5-301;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1866 (o) aggravated kidnapping under Section 76-5-302;
- 1867 (p) human trafficking for labor under Section 76-5-308;
- 1868 (q) human trafficking for sexual exploitation under Section 76-5-308.1;
- 1869 (r) human smuggling under Section 76-5-308.3;
- 1870 (s) human trafficking of a child under Section 76-5-308.5;
- 1871 (t) benefiting from trafficking and human smuggling under Section 76-5-309;
- 1872 (u) aggravated human trafficking under Section 76-5-310;
- 1873 (v) sexual exploitation of a minor under Section 76-5b-201;
- 1874 (w) aggravated sexual exploitation of a minor under Section 76-5b-201.1;
- 1875 (x) arson under Section 76-6-102;
- 1876 (y) aggravated arson under Section 76-6-103;
- 1877 (z) causing a catastrophe under Section 76-6-105;
- 1878 (aa) burglary under Section 76-6-202;
- 1879 (bb) aggravated burglary under Section 76-6-203;
- 1880 (cc) burglary of a vehicle under Section 76-6-204;
- 1881 (dd) manufacture or possession of an instrument for burglary or theft under Section 76-6-205;
- 1883 (ee) robbery under Section 76-6-301;
- 1884 (ff) aggravated robbery under Section 76-6-302;
- 1885 (gg) theft under Section 76-6-404;
- 1886 (hh) theft by deception under Section 76-6-405;
- 1887 (ii) theft by extortion under Section 76-6-406;
- 1888 (jj) receiving stolen property under Section 76-6-408;
- 1889 (kk) theft of services under Section 76-6-409;
- 1890 (ll) metal or catalytic converter theft under Section 76-6-415;
- 1891 [~~hh~~] (mm) forgery under Section 76-6-501;
- 1892 [~~mm~~] (nn) unlawful use of financial transaction card under Section 76-6-506.2;
- 1893 [~~nn~~] (oo) unlawful acquisition, possession, or transfer of financial transaction card under Section 76-6-506.3;
- 1895 [~~oo~~] (pp) financial transaction card offenses under Section 76-6-506.6;
- 1896 [~~pp~~] (qq) deceptive business practices under Section 76-6-507;
- 1897

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- [~~(qq)~~] (rr) bribery or receiving bribe by person in the business of selection, appraisal, or criticism of goods under Section 76-6-508;
- 1899 [~~(rr)~~] (ss) bribery of a labor official under Section 76-6-509;
- 1900 [~~(ss)~~] (tt) defrauding creditors under Section 76-6-511;
- 1901 [~~(tt)~~] (uu) acceptance of deposit by insolvent financial institution under Section 76-6-512;
- 1902 [~~(uu)~~] (vv) unlawful dealing with property by fiduciary under Section 76-6-513;
- 1903 [~~(vv)~~] (ww) bribery or threat to influence contest under Section 76-6-514;
- 1904 [~~(ww)~~] (xx) making a false credit report under Section 76-6-517;
- 1905 [~~(xx)~~] (yy) criminal simulation under Section 76-6-518;
- 1906 [~~(yy)~~] (zz) criminal usury under Section 76-6-520;
- 1907 [~~(zz)~~] (aaa) insurance fraud under Section 76-6-521;
- 1908 [~~(aaa)~~] (bbb) retail theft under Section 76-6-602;
- 1909 [~~(bbb)~~] (ccc) computer crimes under Section 76-6-703;
- 1910 [~~(eee)~~] (ddd) identity fraud under Section 76-6-1102;
- 1911 [~~(ddd)~~] (eee) mortgage fraud under Section 76-6-1203;
- 1912 [~~(eee)~~] (fff) sale of a child under Section 76-7-203;
- 1913 [~~(fff)~~] (ggg) bribery to influence official or political actions under Section 76-8-103;
- 1914 [~~(ggg)~~] (hhh) threat to influence official or political action under Section 76-8-104;
- 1915 [~~(hhh)~~] (iii) receiving bribe or bribery by public servant under Section 76-8-105;
- 1916 [~~(iii)~~] (jjj) receiving bribe for endorsement of person as a public servant under Section 76-8-106;
- 1918 [~~(jjj)~~] (kkk) bribery for endorsement of person as public servant under Section 76-8-106.1;
- 1919 [~~(kkk)~~] (lll) official misconduct based on unauthorized act or failure of duty under Section 76-8-201;
- 1921 [~~(lll)~~] (mmm) official misconduct concerning inside information under Section 76-8-202;
- 1922 [~~(mmm)~~] (nnn) obstruction of justice in a criminal investigation or proceeding under Section 76-8-306;
- 1924 [~~(nnn)~~] (ooo) acceptance of bribe or bribery to prevent criminal prosecution under Section 76-8-308;
- 1926 [~~(ooo)~~] (ppp) harboring or concealing offender who has escaped from official custody under Section 76-8-309.2;
- 1928 [~~(ppp)~~] (qqq) making a false or inconsistent material statement under Section 76-8-502;
- 1929 [~~(qqq)~~] (rrr) making a false or inconsistent statement under Section 76-8-503;
- 1930 [~~(rrr)~~] (sss) making a written false statement under Section 76-8-504;
- 1931 [~~(sss)~~] (ttt) tampering with a witness under Section 76-8-508;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1932 [(~~ttt~~)] (uuu) retaliation against a witness, victim, or informant under Section 76-8-508.3;
- 1933 [(~~uuu~~)] (vvv) receiving or soliciting a bribe as a witness under Section 76-8-508.7;
- 1934 [(~~vvv~~)] (www) extortion or bribery to dismiss a criminal proceeding under Section 76-8-509;
- 1936 [(~~www~~)] (xxx) tampering with evidence under Section 76-8-510.5;
- 1937 [(~~xxx~~)] (yyy) falsification or alteration of a government record under Section 76-8-511, if the record is a record described in Title 20A, Election Code, or Title 36, Chapter 11, Lobbyist Disclosure and Regulation Act;
- 1940 [(~~yyy~~)] (zzz) public assistance fraud by an applicant for public assistance under Section 76-8-1203.1;
- 1942 [(~~zzz~~)] (aaaa) public assistance fraud by a recipient of public assistance under Section 76-8-1203.3;
- 1944 [(~~aaaa~~)] (bbbb) public assistance fraud by a provider under Section 76-8-1203.5;
- 1945 [(~~bbbb~~)] (cccc) fraudulently misappropriating public assistance funds under Section 76-8-1203.7;
- 1947 [(~~eeee~~)] (dddd) false statement to obtain or increase unemployment compensation under Section 76-8-1301;
- 1949 [(~~dddd~~)] (eeee) false statement to prevent or reduce unemployment compensation or liability under Section 76-8-1302;
- 1951 [(~~eeee~~)] (ffff) unlawful failure to comply with Employment Security Act requirements under Section 76-8-1303;
- 1953 [(~~ffff~~)] (gggg) unlawful use or disclosure of employment information under Section 76-8-1304;
- 1955 [(~~gggg~~)] (hhhh) intentionally or knowingly causing one animal to fight with another under Subsection 76-9-301(2)(d) or (e), or Section 76-9-301.1;
- 1957 [(~~hhhh~~)] (iiii) possession, use, or removal of explosives, chemical, or incendiary devices or parts under Section 76-10-306;
- 1959 [(~~iiii~~)] (jjjj) delivery to common carrier, mailing, or placement on premises of an incendiary device under Section 76-10-307;
- 1961 [(~~jjjj~~)] (kkkk) possession of a deadly weapon with intent to assault under Section 76-10-507;
- 1963 [(~~kkkk~~)] (llll) unlawful marking of pistol or revolver under Section 76-10-521;
- 1964 [(~~llll~~)] (mmmm) alteration of number or mark on pistol or revolver under Section 76-10-522;
- 1966 [(~~mmmm~~)] (nnnn) forging or counterfeiting trademarks, trade name, or trade device under Section 76-10-1002;
- 1968 [(~~nnnn~~)] (oooo) selling goods under counterfeited trademark, trade name, or trade devices under Section 76-10-1003;

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 1970 [~~(oooo)~~] (pppp) sales in containers bearing registered trademark of substituted articles under Section 76-10-1004;
- 1972 [~~(pppp)~~] (qqqq) selling or dealing with article bearing registered trademark or service mark with intent to defraud under Section 76-10-1006;
- 1974 [~~(qqqq)~~] (rrrr) gambling under Section 76-10-1102;
- 1975 [~~(rrrr)~~] (ssss) gambling fraud under Section 76-10-1103;
- 1976 [~~(ssss)~~] (tttt) gambling promotion under Section 76-10-1104;
- 1977 [~~(tttt)~~] (uuuu) possessing a gambling device or record under Section 76-10-1105;
- 1978 [~~(uuuu)~~] (vvvv) confidence game under Section 76-10-1109;
- 1979 [~~(vvvv)~~] (wwwv) distributing pornographic material under Section 76-10-1204;
- 1980 [~~(wwwv)~~] (xxxx) inducing acceptance of pornographic material under Section 76-10-1205;
- 1982 [~~(xxxx)~~] (yyyy) dealing in harmful material to a minor under Section 76-10-1206;
- 1983 [~~(yyyy)~~] (zzzz) distribution of pornographic films under Section 76-10-1222;
- 1984 [~~(zzzz)~~] (aaaaa) indecent public displays under Section 76-10-1228;
- 1985 [~~(aaaaa)~~] (bbbbb) prostitution under Section 76-10-1302;
- 1986 [~~(bbbbb)~~] (ccccc) aiding prostitution under Section 76-10-1304;
- 1987 [~~(ccccc)~~] (ddddd) exploiting prostitution under Section 76-10-1305;
- 1988 [~~(ddddd)~~] (eeeee) aggravated exploitation of prostitution under Section 76-10-1306;
- 1989 [~~(eeeee)~~] (fffff) communications fraud under Section 76-10-1801;
- 1990 [~~(fffff)~~] (ggggg) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions of Part 19, Money Laundering and Currency Transaction Reporting Act;
- 1992 [~~(ggggg)~~] (hhhhh) vehicle compartment for contraband under Section 76-10-2801;
- 1993 [~~(hhhhh)~~] (iiii) an act prohibited by the criminal provisions of the laws governing taxation in this state;
or
- 1995 [~~(iiii)~~] (jjjjj) an act illegal under the laws of the United States and enumerated in 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1961(1)(B), (C), and (D).
- 672 Section 9. Section **78B-3-108** is amended to read:
- 673 **78B-3-108. Shoplifting -- Merchant's rights -- Civil liability for shoplifting by adult or minor**
-- Criminal conviction not a prerequisite for civil liability -- Written notice required for penalty
demand.
- 2001 (1) As used in this section:

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- 2002 (a) "Merchandise" has the same meaning as provided in Section 76-6-601.
- 2003 (b) "Merchant" has the same meaning as provided in Section 76-6-601.
- 2004 (c) "Minor" has the same meaning as provided in Section 76-6-601.
- 2005 (d) "Premises" has the same meaning as "retail mercantile establishment" found in Section 76-6-601.
- 2007 (2)
- (a) A merchant may request an individual on the merchant's premises to place or keep in full view any merchandise the individual may have removed, or which the merchant has reason to believe the individual may have removed, from its place of display or elsewhere, whether for examination, purchase, or for any other reasonable purpose.
- 2012 (b) The merchant may not be criminally or civilly liable for having made the request.
- 2013 (3)
- (a) A merchant who has reason to believe that an individual has committed any of the offenses listed in Subsection [~~76-6-404(3)(b)(iii)(A), (B), or (C)~~] 76-6-404(3)(b)(ii)(A), (B), or (C) and that the merchant can recover the merchandise by taking the individual into custody and detaining the individual may, for the purpose of attempting to recover the merchandise or for the purpose of informing a peace officer of the circumstances of the detention, take the individual into custody and detain the individual in a reasonable manner and for a reasonable length of time.
- 2020 (b) Neither the merchant nor the merchant's employee may be criminally or civilly liable for false arrest, false imprisonment, slander, or unlawful detention or for any other type of claim or action unless the custody and detention are unreasonable under all the circumstances.
- 2024 (4)
- (a) A merchant may prohibit an individual who has committed any of the offenses listed in Subsection [~~76-6-404(3)(b)(iii)~~] 76-6-404(3)(b)(ii) from reentering the premises on which the individual has committed the offense.
- 2027 (b) The merchant shall give written notice of this prohibition to the individual under Subsection (4)(a).
The notice may be served by:
- 2029 (i) delivering a copy to the individual personally;
- 2030 (ii) sending a copy through registered or certified mail addressed to the individual at the individual's residence or usual place of business;
- 2032

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

- (iii) leaving a copy with an individual of suitable age and discretion at either location under Subsection (4)(b)(ii) and mailing a copy to the individual at the individual's residence or place of business if the individual is absent from the residence or usual place of business; or
- 2036 (iv) affixing a copy in a conspicuous place at the individual's residence or place of business.
- 2038 (c) The individual serving the notice may authenticate service with the individual's signature, the method of service, and legibly documenting the date and time of service.
- 2041 (5) An adult who commits any of the offenses listed in Subsection [~~76-6-404(3)(b)(iii)(A), (B), or (C)~~] 76-6-404(3)(b)(ii)(A), (B), or (C) is also liable in a civil action for:
- 2043 (a) actual damages;
- 2044 (b) a penalty to the merchant in the amount of the retail price of the merchandise not to exceed \$1,000; and
- 2046 (c) an additional penalty as determined by the court of not less than \$100 nor more than \$500, plus court costs and reasonable attorney fees.
- 2048 (6) A minor who commits any of the offenses listed in Subsection [~~76-6-404(3)(b)(iii)(A), (B), or (C)~~] 76-6-404(3)(b)(ii)(A), (B), or (C) and the minor's parents or legal guardian are jointly and severally liable in a civil action to the merchant for:
- 2051 (a) actual damages;
- 2052 (b) a penalty to be remitted to the merchant in the amount of the retail price of the merchandise not to exceed \$500 plus an additional penalty as determined by the court of not less than \$50 nor more than \$500; and
- 2055 (c) court costs and reasonable attorney fees.
- 2056 (7) A parent or guardian is not liable for damages under this section if the parent or guardian made a reasonable effort to restrain the wrongful taking and reported it to the merchant involved or to the law enforcement agency having primary jurisdiction once the parent or guardian knew of the minor's unlawful act. A report is not required under this section if the minor was arrested or apprehended by a peace officer or by anyone acting on behalf of the merchant involved.
- 2062 (8) A conviction in a criminal action for any of the offenses listed in Subsection [~~76-6-404(3)(b)(iii)(A), (B), or (C)~~] 76-6-404(3)(b)(ii)(A), (B), or (C) is not a condition precedent to a civil action authorized under Subsection (5) or (6).
- 2065 (9)

SB0133 compared with SB0133S02

(a) A merchant demanding payment of a penalty under Subsection (5) or (6) shall give written notice to the individual or individuals from whom the penalty is sought. The notice shall state:

2068 "IMPORTANT NOTICE: The payment of any penalty demanded of you does not prevent criminal prosecution under a related criminal provision."

2070 (b) This notice shall be boldly and conspicuously displayed, in at least the same size type as is used in the demand, and shall be sent with the demand for payment of the penalty described in Subsection (5) or (6).

2073 (10) The provision of Section 78B-8-201 requiring that compensatory or general damages be awarded in order to award punitive damages does not prohibit an award of a penalty under Subsection (5) or (6) whether or not restitution has been paid to the merchant either prior to or as part of a civil action.

752 Section 10. **Effective date.**

This bill takes effect on July 1, 2025.

Section 34. **Repealer.**

This Bill Repeals:

2081 Section **13-32a-118, Payment limitation for catalytic converter purchases.**

2079 Section **13-32a-104.7, Database information from catalytic converter purchasers --**

2080 **Penalties.**

2-18-25 12:30 PM